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SHARE REGISTRAR

Principal Share Registrar

Appleby Global Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street

PO Box HM 1179, Hamilton HM EX

Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

17th Floor, Eton Tower
8 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Last Registration Date for 8 December 2025
Annual General Meeting
Book-close Dates 9 December 2025 —
12 December 2025
(both days inclusive)
Annual General Meeting 12 December 2025
Last Registration Date for 17 December 2025
Final Dividend
Book-close Dates 18 December 2025 —
19 December 2025

(both days inclusive)
Payment of Final Dividend 6 January 2026
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHRESE (5

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”), |
present to the shareholders the annual report of Dynamic Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 30 June 2025.

RESULTS

For the year ended 30 June 2025 (the “year”), the Group reported
total revenue of HK$64,952,000 (2024: HK$71,573,000) and gross
profit of HK$41,362,000 (2024: HK $44,965,000), representing a
decrease in revenue and gross profit about 9% and 8% respectively,
as compared with the corresponding figures for the previous year (the
“last year”). The gross profit margin was about 64% (2024: 63%).
These results were primarily attributable to the reduced rental revenue
from investment properties of the Group in Chinese Mainland as
denominated in Renminbi yuan (“RMB”) during the year.

During the year under review, the Group recognised other income
and gains amounting to HK$9,039,000 (2024: HK $3,083,000),
which arose mainly from bank interest income of HK$7,588,000
(2024: HK$7,032,000) and net exchange gain of HK$562,000 (2024:
HK$4,297,000) in the year. There was no reversal of interest income
as the amount due from a joint venture of the Group (the “JV”) in the
Chinese Mainland was fully repaid in last year.

Furthermore, the Group recorded a significant decrease in the fair
value of investment properties, amounting to HK$114,974,000 (2024:
HK$23,927,000) under stagnant property sentiment particularly in
the office sector in the year. Administrative expenses were reduced
to HK$27,100,000 (2024: HK$47,566,000) mainly due to reduced
expenses related to the JV.

The Group did not record any share of profit from the JV during the
year. The recognition of a profit of HK$12,635,773,000 in last year
was a one-off fair value gain on a piece of land distributed to the
Group by the JV.

Taking all factors into account, including the non-cash decrease in
fair value of investment properties and the related deferred tax effect,
the Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to shareholders
of the Company in the sum of HK$62,594,000 (2024: profit of
HK$5,353,955,000), with basic loss per share of HK$0.263 (2024:
basic earnings per share of HK$22.52). The significant decrease in
earnings per share between the two years was mainly due to the above-
mentioned one-off fair value gain and related tax effect in last year.
Excluding the effects of such one-off gain and related tax effect, the
Group recorded an underlying basic loss per share of HK$0.0738 in
last year.
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RESULTS (Continued)

In addition, due to an exchange difference arising from the translation
of the presentation currency in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”)
from functional currency in RMB, which marginally appreciated
against HKD by 0.08% (2024: 1%) as at the end of the year, other
comprehensive income was HK$5,620,000 (2024: HK$18,460,000),
and the total comprehensive expense attributable to shareholders of the
Company amounted to HK$57,007,000 (2024: total comprehensive
income of HK$5,372,015,000) for the year.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 0.5 Hong Kong cents (2024: 0.5 Hong Kong cents) per share to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 19 December 2025. Together
with the interim dividend of 0.5 Hong Kong cents per share which
were paid to the shareholders of the Company during the year, the
total dividend for the year amounts to a total of 1 Hong Kong cent
per share. Subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 12
December 2025, the warrants for the final dividend are expected to be
despatched to those entitled on or about Tuesday, 6 January 2026.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year under review, the overall revenue and segment results of
the Group were derived from segment of property rental (the revenue
of which was denominated in RMB) principally from its investment
properties in Chinese Mainland, whereas segment results of the Group
were derived from segments of property rental from its investment
properties and property development in Chinese Mainland. The
performance of rental segment of the Group was adversely affected
by the prolonged downturn of the property market, leading to reduced
rental income and the downward pressure in fair value of investment

properties as compared with those of the last year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHRESE (5

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The rental income of the Group generated from its investment
properties located in Shanghai and Beijing, amounted to
RMB59,626,000 (2024: RMB65,215,000), representing a decrease
of about 9% revenue as compared with that of last year. Such rental
income, as presented in the financial statements, amounted to
HK$64,952,000 (2024: HK$71,573,000), which accounted for all
(2024: all) of the consolidated revenue of the Group for the year.
The fair value of the investment properties of the Group, including
shopping malls, car parks and other properties in Beijing and
office units in Shanghai, recorded a decrease of RMB105,547,000
(equivalent to HK$114,974,000) (2024: RMB21,802,000 (equivalent
to HK$23,927,000)). The decline in rental income and fair value was
mainly due to stagnant property sentiment, particularly on office sector
during the year. As such, the property rental segment recorded a loss
of RMB67,969,000 (equivalent to HK$74,039,000) (2024: a profit of
RMB18,326,000 (equivalent to HK$20,113,000)).

Excluding the effects of the changes in non-cash fair value of these
investment properties and the related tax effect, the underlying
segment results recorded a profit of RMB37,578,000 (equivalent
to HK$40,935,000) (2024: RMB40,128,000 (equivalent to
HK$44,040,000)).

Besides, the Group was developing a piece of land situated in
Shenzhen for residential and commercial use with ancillary facilities,
which was distributed to the Group last year as mentioned below.
This property was under development and had not yet generated any
revenue (2024: nil), and accordingly the segment recorded a loss of
HK$4,988,000 (2024: HK$939,000) for the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Beijing

In Beijing, the rental income generated from the well-established
community mall of the Group in Chaoyang District decreased, with
an average occupancy rate of about 87% (2024: 86%) throughout the
year. The rental income of this segment (including car parks and other
certain properties) totaled RMB25,405,000 (2024: RMB26,579,000)
for the year, representing a decrease of about 4% compared with
that of the last year. It translated into HK$27,675,000 (2024:
HK$29,171,000), accounting for 43% (2024: 41%) of the total revenue
of the Group. The decline in rental income was mainly due to new
supply, suppressed consumption and subdued retailing sentiment in
Beijing during the year. The fair value of these investment properties
decreased by RMB34,948,000 (equivalent to HK$38,070,000) (2024:
RMB11,369,000 (equivalent to HK$12,477,000)), resulting in a loss
of HK$23,798,000 (2024: a profit of HK$2,407,000) recorded in the
segment results for the year.

Excluding the effects of the changes in fair value of these investment
properties and related tax effect, the underlying segment results
recorded a profit of RMB13,101,000 (equivalent to HK$14,272,000)
(2024: RMB13,562,000 (equivalent to HK$14,884,000)).

Shanghai

In Shanghai, the quality offices of the Group known as “Eton
Place”, located in core financial district of Little Lujiazui in Pudong,
experienced a downtrend in average occupancy rate to about
70% (2024: 83%) during the year, with the rental income totaling
RMB34,221,000 (2024: RMB38,635,000), representing a decrease
of about 11% compared with that of the last year. It translated into
HK$37,277,000 (2024: HK$42,402,000), accounting for 57% (2024:
59%) of the total revenue of the Group for the year. The decline in
rental income and occupancy rate was primarily due to the abundant
oversupply of office, sluggish leasing demand and major tenants’
default on rental payments, resulting in low net take-up rate and
downward pressure on rental and fair value. During the year, the fair
value of these investment properties decreased by RMB70,599,000
(equivalent to HK$76,904,000) (2024: RMB10,433,000 (equivalent
to HK$11,450,000)), resulting in a loss of HK$50,241,000 (2024: a
profit of HK$17,706,000) recorded in the segment results.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHRESE (5

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Shanghai (Continued)

Excluding the effects of the changes in fair value of these investment
properties and related tax effect, the underlying segment results
recorded a profit of RMB24,477,000 (equivalent to HK$26,663,000)
(2024: RMB26,566,000 (equivalent to HK$29,156,000)).

Shenzhen

In the year, the Group developed a plot of land no. K709-0003 located
in Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan District, Shenzhen (the “Land”), which
was granted to the Group by YEIITTELEIFN [H 4% &R =7 11 & HL 5
(Nanshan Administration of Shenzhen Municipal Bureau of Planning
and Natural Resources) (the “Bureau”) last year.

The Land is primely located to the east of &£ K% (Hou Hai
Avenue), to the south of ¢ 1785 (Shekou New Street), to the north
of BV % (Wang Hai Road) and to the west of £ {#}% (Hou Hai
Bin Road), which is at the premier waterfront cultural and leisure
region in Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan Distract. It covers a site area of
approximately 65,000 square metres for multi-purpose development,
with a developable gross floor area of approximately 179,000 square
metres, comprising about 143,000 square metres for residential use
and 29,000 square metres for commercial use and other supporting

ancillary facilities.

During the year, the Group commenced development of the Land and
had been working closely with various relevant government authorities
and stakeholders on development options and master planning of the
Land. These plans align with the city planning and infrastructure,
including development of metro line and station, to support cultural
and leisure facilities in the region and the opera house nearby. As for
the construction and development costs of the Land, it is projected
that the funding will derive from internal resources, bank financing
and other applicable means as appropriates. Various major banks
have positively indicated appropriate financing terms for the property
development of the Land, and the Group will endeavor to secure the
most favorable financing for the project.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025 9
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Shenzhen (Continued)

Regarding the JV known as Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises
Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”), in which the Company holds 49% of equity
interests and whose license expired in 2014, the Group and the JV
partner (the “JV Partner”) continued its liquidation. After the land
swap that surrendered its interests in a piece of land located in Tung
Kok Tau, Nanshan District, Shenzhen (the “Previous Land”) to the
Bureau, in return for, among others, the Land granted to the Group.
Zhen Wah no longer holds any significant asset following the land
swap.

The Group did not record any share of profit from the JV during the
year (2024: nil).

Meanwhile, as previously disclosed, an ex-tenant lodged appeals
(the “Appeals”) against the previous judgements with the Shenzhen
Intermediate People’s Court of Guangdong Province (the “Court”),
concerning four administrative proceedings filed by the ex-tenant as
plaintiff against the relevant official authorities (the “Authorities”)
as defendants, with Zhen Wah joined as a third party, relating to the
Previous Lands. The ex-tenant opposed the relocation compensation
agreement (the “Compensation Agreement”) previously entered
into between the Authorities and Zhen Wah concerning demolition,
relocation and compensation for those buildings, erections
and equipment on the Previous Land; and claimed additional
compensation. During the year, the Court dismissed three of four
Appeals and upheld their original judgments. For the remaining
Appeal, the Court modified the second ruling of its original judgment
to order the Authorities to reconsider the ex-tenant’s compensation
request, while upholding other parts of the original judgment. The
Group and the JV Partner are monitoring the progress and will take
appropriate actions as and when necessary, based on the advice of
their PRC legal advisers.

Based on the PRC legal advice received by the Group regarding
historical disputes over Zhen Wah between the Group and JV Partner,
including the change of equity interests from 80% to 49% in Zhen
Wabh in prior years (the “Historical Disputes”), the Group was entitled
to the distribution of the relevant income and profit from the Previous
Land held by Zhen Wah before re-development, as supported in the
arbitral award made in 2010 after arbitration between the Group and
JV Partner in respect of the Historical Disputes. The Group continued
to act and to seek PRC legal advice and to take expedient actions
(including but not limited to litigation and/or arbitration) to safeguard
the best interest of the Group in Zhen Wah and its assets in respect of
the Historical Disputes.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHRESE (5

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital Structure

The financial position of the Group remains sound and liquid, and
its financing and treasury policies are managed and controlled at the
corporate level and in a prudent manner during the year. The main
objective is to utilise the Group’s funds efficiently and manage the
financial risks effectively. As at 30 June 2025, the equity attributable
to its owners amounted to RMB6,652,967,000 (30 June 2024:
RMB6,712,492,000), translating to HK$7,295,320,000 (30 June 2024:
HK$7,354,705,000) with a net asset value per share of HK$30.69 (30
June 2024: HK$30.94). As at 30 June 2025, the Group has no bank
borrowings (30 June 2024: nil), resulting in a nil gearing ratio (30 June
2024: nil). The exposure to foreign currency fluctuations that affected
the Group during the year under review was mainly the fluctuation of
RMB against HKD, resulting in a net exchange gain of HK$562,000
(2024: HK$4,297,000) and exchange difference from translating
functional currency of RMB to presentation currency of HKD,
amounting to other comprehensive income of HK$5,620,000 (2024:
HK$18,460,000). No financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes during the year and the Group will continue to closely
monitor the fluctuation of RMB to minimise any adverse impacts.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

During the year under review, sufficient cashflow was generated
from rental revenue of investment properties and interest income.
As at 30 June 2025, the bank balance and deposits and cash of the
Group totaled HK$438,327,000 (30 June 2024: HK $422,338,000),
primarily denominated in RMB. With sufficient cashflow, the Group
maintained unutilised credit facilities of HK$1,000,000 (30 June
2024: HK$1,000,000) as working capital, subject to floating interest
rates, as at 30 June 2025. The Group’s net current assets amounted
to HK$13,082,332,000 (30 June 2024: HK$13,057,439,000) with a
current ratio of 72.77 (30 June 2024: 74.17) as at 30 June 2025.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Resources and Liquidity (Continued)

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had significant commitments of capital
expenditures for property development amounting to HK$33,464,000
(2024: nil). Meanwhile, the projected construction and development
costs of the property development of the Land are substantial (subject
to the development plan), which will be funded by internal resources,
bank financing and other applicable means as appropriates. Various
major banks have positively indicated appropriate financing terms for
the property development of the Land, and the Group will endeavor to
secure the most favorable financing for the project.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2025, the borrowing of the Group was nil (30 June 2024:
nil) without pledge of assets. Meanwhile, the contingent liabilities of
the Group was nil as at 30 June 2025 (30 June 2024: nil).

PROSPECTS

The China economy demonstrates resilience and steady signs of
recovery momentum, though it faces headwinds from a prolonged
property downturn, subdued domestic consumption, caution business
sentiment, geopolitical tensions and imposition of tariffs. A series
of ongoing stimulus policies as well as fiscal and monetary easing
measures in mainland aim to stabilise the property sector and revitalize
the consumption, supporting sustained high-quality steady economic
growth in China. These are expected to boost market sentiment, spur
domestic demand and bolster business activities, underpinning leasing

activities of retail and office sectors.

In Beijing, the retail market is expected to face a downward cycle
in leasing demand and rent owing to stalled demand and weakened
retailer performance, as consumers remain cautions on non-essential
spending. However, supportive policies and efforts are expected
to improve consumer spending and gradually unlock consumption
potential. In response, the Group will implement a multifaceted
strategy to maintain occupancy and recurring revenue. This will
include refining leasing and marketing approaches, optimizing
tenant mix and redefining retail space operations to better fulfil local
consumer needs. The Group will also adopt competitive, flexible rental
strategies to attract new retailers/tenants and retain existing retailers/

tenants.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHRESE (5

PROSPECTS (Continued)

In Shanghai, the office market will remain challenging under
significant pressure in the face of the ample oversupply and sluggish
occupier sentiment, weighing heavily leasing activity. It is anticipated
that rental will further decline with rising vacancy rates. To navigate
this environment, the Group will deploy aggressive and flexible rental
strategies. These will include offering the fitting-out subsidies, value-
added services, co-working office spaces and more adoptable leasing
terms to lower entry barriers for tenants, in a bid to attract new tenants
and retain existing tenants, stabilizing occupancy rate and recurring

revenues.

Shenzhen is poised to remain a pioneer in economic and digital
competitiveness as premier special economic zone and global hub
for innovation, entrepreneurship and advanced technology with high-
quality development under official support and stimulus policy,
particularly Nanshan District as high-end, tech-centric area. In
addition, the development of transportation network and infrastructure
projects in Shenzhen stimulates intra-city and intercity connections,
solidifying its role as the driving impetus for the sustainable growth

and development of Guangdong-Hong Kong Macao Greater Bay Area.

Meanwhile, the local property market shows signs of policy-driven
stabilization, evidenced by high-price land auction in key plots and
recent swift sales of new premium-quality residential projects. A
promising outlook of Shenzhen’s property market is supported by its
reputation as a highly livable city and government stimulus policies
for property sector. Together with the optimized city planning as
quality cultural and leisure area in addition to metro line and station
near opera house in Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, this
will further enhance the future development value of the Land.

The Group will continue to act proactively for safeguarding the
best interests of the Company in relation to Zhen Wah and its assets
in respect of Historical Disputes. It will continue to adopt the best
available measures and take expedient action to protect the Company’s
best interests. The Group will continue to seek PRC legal advice and
to further strive for the best interest of the Group in relation to Zhen

Wah and its assets.

Simultaneously, the Group will continue to work closely with the
relevant authorities and parties to explore various development options
to optimise the future development value of the Land in alignment
with city planning and the projects of adjacent opera house and

infrastructure for the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
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APPRECIATION

The Board would like to thank the shareholders, bankers, customers,
suppliers of the Group and other stakeholders who have extended their
continued support to the Group and all staff of the Group for their
contributions to the Group in the year.

Dr. TAN Lucio C.

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 September 2025
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The brief biographical details of each director (the “Directors”) of the
board (the “Board”) of Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”’) and updated
information (if any) on Directors pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) and
13.51C of the Listing Rules as at the date of this report are as follows:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. TAN Lucio C., aged 91, is the Chairman of the Board and
Executive Director of the Company as appointed in 2019. He is also
the chairman and director of a subsidiary of the Company (Beijing
Longfast Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Longfast™)) in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in real estate, banking, airline,
hotel, liquor and tobacco industries. Dr. TAN holds a number of
senior positions in various organisations and holds directorships in
various listed companies. Dr. TAN is and has been the chairman,
chief executive officer and a director of LT Group, Inc. (“LT
Group”), PAL Holdings, Inc. (“PAL”) and MacroAsia Corporation
(“MacroAsia”), and the chairman emeritus (previously a director) of
Philippine National Bank (“PNB”), all securities of which are listed on
The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (“PSE”). In addition, he has been
recognised for, and awarded as the “Beijing City Overseas Chinese
Special Honorary Award” (Beijing Municipality) and the “Overseas
Chinese Entrepreneur with the Greatest Sense of Social Responsibility
in the Asia-Pacific Region” (Overseas Chinese Affairs Office of the
State Council, China). As for involvement in social organisations,
Dr. TAN is the chairman emeritus of the Federation of Filipino-
Chinese Chambers of Commerce and Industry, Inc. (“FFCCCI”)
in the Philippines. Dr. TAN holds a bachelor of science in chemical
engineering from Far Eastern University in the Philippines, and several
honorary doctorate degrees from various universities. He is related
to other Executive Directors being the spouse of Mrs. TAN Carmen
K.; the father of Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao, Ms. TAN Irene Khao and
Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan; and the father-in-law of Mr. PASCUAL
Ramon Sy.

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, aged 67, is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company as re-designated in 2019 and has been appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company since 2007. He is also the
director of all subsidiaries of the Company (except certain subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC) and a director of a joint venture in the PRC,
Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd., in which the Company
holds 49% of equity interests and its operation period expired on 16
January 2014 and it was previously in compulsory liquidation and
withdrawn in May 2023. He has years of senior managerial experience
specialising in the field of real estate, accounting and finance in Hong
Kong and Chinese Mainland. Prior to joining the Group in 1993, he
worked at a major accounting firm and held various senior accounting
positions in property companies in Hong Kong. He holds a master
degree in business administration.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mrs. TAN Carmen K., aged 84, is an Executive Director of the
Company as appointed in 2019. She is also a member of nomination
committee of the Board with effect from 30 June 2025. She is in
charge of business development, investment and management of the
Group. She has years of senior managerial experience specialising
in real estate, banking, airline, hotel, liquor and tobacco industries.
Mrs. TAN holds directorships in several listed companies. She is and
has been the vice chairman and director of LT Group, a director of
PAL and MacroAsia and the board advisor (previously a director)
of PNB, all securities of which are listed on PSE. She is related to
other Executive Directors being the spouse of Dr. TAN Lucio C.; the
mother of Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao, Ms. TAN Irene Khao and Mrs.
PASCUAL Sheila Tan; and the mother-in-law of Mr. PASCUAL
Ramon Sy.

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, aged 66, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 2006. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He is also
a director of Beijing Longfast in the PRC. He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in real estate and manufacturing.
He currently holds a senior executive position in Eton Properties
(Holdings) Limited, and serves as directors in several companies
engaging businesses of real estate, manufacturing and logistics
in Chinese Mainland, Hong Kong and the Philippines. He holds
a bachelor degree in economics. He is related to other Executive
Directors being the son-in-law of Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN
Carmen K.; the brother-in-law of Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao and Ms.
TAN Irene Khao; and the spouse of Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan.

Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao, aged 57, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 2019. She is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. She has
years of senior managerial experience specialising in real estate,
banking, airline and education. Ms. TAN is and has been a director of
LT Group, MacroAsia and PNB, all securities of which are listed on
PSE. She is the director of Eton Properties Philippines, Inc. She sits on
the Board of the University of the East and the University of the East
Ramon Magsaysay Memorial Medical Center. She has been awarded
the “Ten Outstanding Young Men Award” for education/business
entrepreneurship in the Philippines. Ms. TAN graduated from the
University of San Francisco with a double degree in mathematics and
computer science. She is related to other Executive Directors being the
daughter of Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K.; the sister of
Ms. TAN Irene Khao and Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan; and the sister-
in-law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. TAN Irene Khao, aged 60, is an Executive Director of the
Company as appointed in 2021. She is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. She has
years of senior managerial experience specialising in banking, hotel,
securities and insurance industries. She is the director of Alliedbankers
Insurance Corporation as well as the director and president of Pan Asia
Securities Corporation. Ms. TAN graduated from the University of
San Francisco with a degree in Science in Business Administration.
She is related to other Executive Directors being the daughter of Dr.
TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K.; the sister of Ms. TAN
Vivienne Khao and Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan; and the sister-in-law
of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth, aged 74, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company as appointed in 1994. He is also
the chairman of both audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Board, as well as a member of nomination committee of the Board.
He is a veteran in the jewellery business in which he has years of
senior managerial experience. He is managing a number of companies
engaged in diamond trading, jewellery manufacturing, wholesaling
and exports activities in Hong Kong and South East Asian countries.
Currently, he also serves as an independent non-executive director of
Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited (“Allied”).

Mr. GO Patrick Lim, aged 67, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company as appointed in 2013. He is also a member of
both audit committee and remuneration committee of the Board, and
the chairman and member of nomination committee of the Board. He
is the chief executive officer of Paramount Life & General Insurance
Corporation and also serves as an independent non-executive director
of Allied. He has years of senior managerial experience specialising in
corporate finance and private/public equity having worked for Credit
Suisse First Boston, Bank of America Asia Limited and Bankers Trust
Company. He is also a member of Singapore Institute of Directors. He
holds a bachelor degree in economics and a master degree in business
administration. He was formerly a director of Del Monte Pacific
Limited, which was listed on Singapore Exchange Limited.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. NGU Angel, aged 77, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company as appointed in 2019. He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in the business of aluminum
products. Mr. NGU holds directorships in various companies and
holds a number of senior positions in various organisations. He is
the chairman and president of Angus Aluminum, Inc. and Roosevelt
Aluminum Products Co. Inc. He also acts as honorary president
of FFCCCI in the Philippines and Filipino-Chinese Quezon City
Chamber of Commerce. In addition, he has been awarded as 2016
Outstanding Manilan for Community Service, City of Manila. He
holds a bachelor degree in commerce from University of the East in
the Philippines.

Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony, aged 70, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company as appointed in 2019. He is also a
member of remuneration committee, audit committee and nomination
committee of the Board. He has years of senior managerial experience
specialising in the business of banking. Mr. MA has held senior
position in treasury and global markets in Bank of Shanghai (Hong
Kong) Limited and Bank of America, N.A. Hong Kong Branch.
He has been a member of the Treasury Markets Association and
an alternate chief executive of Bank of America, N.A. Hong Kong
Branch. He holds a Bachelor of Arts from York University in Canada.

Alternate Director

Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan, aged 63, is an Alternate Director to
Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K. as appointed with effect
from 30 June 2025. She has years of senior managerial experience
specialising in banking and airline industries. She is and has been a
director of PAL and PNB, both securities of which are listed on PSE.
She is related to other Executive Directors being the daughter of Dr.
TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K.; the sister of Ms. TAN
Vivienne Khao and Ms. TAN Irene Khao; and the spouse of Mr.
PASCUAL Ramon Sy.

By virtue of rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the updated
information on Director(s) is that pursuant to a letter of appointment
entered into between Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan, an alternative
Director, and the Company on 2 July 2025, Mrs. PASCUAL is entitled
to receive a director’s fee or emolument on the basis of HK$40,000 per
attendance of each meeting of the Board, meeting of any committee of
the Board or general meeting of the Company, which is determined by
the Board in accordance with the emolument policy as recommended
by the Remuneration Committee and subject to endorsement by the
shareholders in general meeting of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) and
management of Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) strive
to establish and uphold good practices and procedures on corporate
governance. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasizes on creating long-term sustainable growth for shareholders
and delivery long-term values to all stakeholders. An effective
corporate governance structure allows the Company to have a better
understanding of, evaluate and manage risk and opportunity including
environmental and social risks and opportunities.

During the year ended 30 June 2025, being the financial year under
review, and up to the date of this annual report, the Board and the
management of the Company have been continually reviewing
and enhancing the corporate governance practices of the Company
with reference to local and international best practices from time
to time. The Board believes that its continued efforts in enhancing
the Company’s corporate governance practices have contributed to
the growth and sustainability of business of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) in the past years.

With an aim to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders for the year ended 30 June 2025 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company has applied the principles and adhered to
the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as amended from
time to time, save for deviation of certain code provision(s) of CG
Code as disclosed below. Also, the Company has met some of the
recommended best practices, where appropriate, in the CG Code.
The CG Code has been amended with effect from 1 July 2025 (the
“Amendments”) and is applicable to the Group in the financial
year commenced on or after 1 July 2025, all corporate governance
principles and code provisions as stipulated in this “Corporate
Governance Report” refer to those in the CG Code before the
Amendments, not the revised CG Code.

The Company has also established an internal corporate governance
code (compliance guide) (the “Internal CG Code”), the contents
of which are in line with the CG Code as revised from time to time
according to the relevant amendments to the Listing Rules. The
Internal CG Code aims to facilitate compliance with the CG Code
and to give guidance to Directors and the senior management of the
Company in this respect. The Board will continue to monitor and
review the corporate governance practices and procedures of the
Company to ensure compliance with the CG Code and to enhance its
practices and procedures.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises six executive directors (the “Executive
Directors”), four independent non-executive directors (the
“Independent Non-executive Directors”) and one alternate director
(the “Alternate Director”). The members of the Board during the
year ended 30 June 2025 and up to 26 September 2025 are as follows:

Dr. TAN Lucio C.
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Alternate Director to Dr. TAN Lucio C.
and Mrs. TAN Carmen K.)

Mrs. TAN Carmen K.

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy

Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao

Ms. TAN Irene Khao

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth

Mr. GO Patrick Lim

Mr. NGU Angel

Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony

Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan
(appointed on 30 June 2025)

Currently, the Company has four Independent Non-executive
Directors representing more than one-third of the Board and more than
one of them have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. For the relationship
(including financial, business, family, if any) between Board members
and Chairman and the chief executive, please refer to the “Profile of
Management” and the section on “Directors’ interests in competing
business” in the “Directors’ Report” on pages 15 to 18 and pages 36 to
48 respectively of this annual report.

Responsibilities and Accountabilities

The Board is responsible for establishing the corporate objective,
value and strategy with overall strategic development and direction,
setting business objectives and development plans, monitoring the
performance of the business and senior management, ensuring sound
corporate governance of the Group and the desired culture with
integrity and reinforcing organisational values of acting lawfully,
ethically and responsibly. It also monitors the financial performance,
the internal controls and risk management of the Group’s business
operations. Executive Directors are responsible for running and
managing the operations of the Group and executing the strategies
adopted by the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Responsibilities and Accountabilities (Continued)

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management with departmental heads responsible for different
aspects of the business and functions of the Group. The Independent
Non-executive Directors serve the function of bringing independent
judgment on the business development and performance, internal
controls, corporate governance and risk management of the Group
through their contributions, views, comments and discussions in the
meetings of the Board and committees of the Board.

The Directors can attend meetings in person or via other
communications equipment in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board meets regularly with meeting
dates scheduled in advance. Between scheduled meetings, senior
management of the Group provides to Directors on demand or on a
regular basis monthly updates and other information with respect to
the performance, business activities, operations and development of
the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2025, the Company held a total of six
Board meetings, three meetings of committees of the Board, and an
annual general meeting. Details of Directors’ attendance record of
such Board meetings, committee meetings and general meeting during
the year are as follows:

Number of Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

Nomination
Name of Directors Board  Audit Committee Committee
Dr. TAN Lucio C. 6/6 N/A N/A 11
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 6/6 N/A N/A 1/1
Mrs. TAN Carmen K. 6/6 NA N/A 11
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 6/6 NA N/A 11
Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao 4/6 N/A N/A 11
Ms. TAN Irene Khao 6/6 N/A N/A 0/1
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, 6/6 212 11 11

Kenneth

Mr. GO Patrick Lim 6/6 212 11 11
Mr. NGU Angel 6/6 NA N/A 11
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony 6/6 22 171 11
Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan 0/0 NA N/A 0/0

(appointed on 30 June
2025)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Training and Development

For training and continuing professional development of Directors,
the Company provides relevant information and publications to all
of the above-mentioned Directors on a regular basis to keep them
abreast of the latest changes and development in the industry, legal,
statutory and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts
its business, and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of a director of a listed company to ensure that
the directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Directors have also from time to time been provided by the Company
of in house and on-line training and updates in the areas of regulatory,
corporate governance, risk management, internal control practices and

policy and sound industry practices.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to attend external forums,
training courses, webinars or seminars on relevant topics for their
continuous professional development. There are arrangements in place
for Directors to obtain continuing professional development at the

Company’s expense whenever necessary.

Each newly appointed Director (if any) receives induction on the first
occasion of her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Group and full awareness of
Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requirements.

Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan, being appointed as an Alternate Director
to Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K. on 30 June 2025, had
obtained legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules
on 19 June 2025, from a law firm qualified to advice on Hong Kong
law. She had confirmed her understanding of all the obligations and
requirements under the Listing Rules applicable to her in her capacity
as an Alternate Director, as well as the possible consequences of
making a false declaration or giving false information to the Stock
Exchange.

In accordance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on
Directors’ training and continuous professional development, all of
the abovementioned Directors participated in the training activities
described above during the year ended 30 June 2025. Each Director
has provided a record of training they received during the year to the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of the chairman (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer (the “CEO”) of the Company are
segregated and separately undertaken by different officers to ensure
a balance of power and authority. The Chairman, Dr. TAN Lucio C.,
provides leadership and is responsible for driving effective functioning
of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice,
and overseeing the Group’s overall direction and strategic planning.
The CEO, Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, is mainly responsible for
implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved by the
Board and managing the business and affairs of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
(the Company has currently no other Non-executive Directors) are
appointed for a term of two years and are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Bye-laws. The Bye-laws stipulate that
every Director will be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years at annual general meeting of the Company, and
being eligible for re-election.

Meanwhile, all Independent Non-executive Directors have to confirm
their respective independence annually pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules for their continuous appointment after reviewed and
assessed by Nomination Committee. Those serving for more than
9 years, their further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”), with deliberation of the factors considered by the
Board or Nomination Committee regarding their independence as set
out in the circular to Shareholders accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting. The Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation
of his independence whereby the Board and the Nomination
Committee consider that each Independent Non-executive Director
meets the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules and is independent.
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors on the same terms as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules as amended from time to time (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director has confirmed to
the Company that he/she has complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2025.
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BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee for overseeing specific aspects of the affairs of the Group.
Each committee is established with defined terms of reference, which
are posted on the website of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a remuneration committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) since 2005 with terms of reference,
which meet the requirements set out in paragraph E.1.2 of the CG
Code. The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 30 June 2025 and up to 26 September 2025 are as follows:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*
Mr. GO Patrick Lim
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing,
evaluating and/or recommending to the Board the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors, senior management and
employees of the Group; the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing the policy of such remuneration; and the
specific remuneration packages (if any) of individual Executive

Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 30 June 2025 and up to 26 September 2025, the
members of the Remuneration Committee performed the following
works pursuant to resolutions in writing signed by all members in
accordance with its terms of reference:

1. reviewed the emolument policy and performance of the
Directors of the Company; and remuneration policy of the
employees of the Group and the retirement benefit schemes of
the Group;

2. made recommendation to the Board of emolument policies
and packages of the Directors and emolument policies of
the employees of the Group and the emolument of a newly
appointed Alternate Director; and

3. reviewed the share option scheme of the Company as incentive
to Directors and eligible employees (as appropriate).

As such, no meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee
during the year ended 30 June 2025.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Board has established a nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) since 2012 with terms of reference, which
meet the requirements as set out in paragraph B.3.1 of the CG Code.
The members of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 30
June 2025 and up to 26 September 2025 are as follows:

Mr. GO Patrick Lim*

Mrs. TAN Carmen K. (appointed as member
on 30 June 2025)

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth

Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing,
among others, the composition, structure, size, gender and diversity of
the Board; formulating and monitoring the policy for nomination of
Directors; making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors and assessing the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors. Criteria adopted by the
Nomination Committee in considering whether the relevant personnel
are suitable as Directors include their qualifications, experience,
expertise, skills and knowledge, ethnicity, age, gender, cultural
background and so on in view of the provisions of the Listing Rules
and the policy of diversity of the Board (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) as adopted by the Board, which summary is set forth below.
When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the Nomination
Committee considers, among other factors, the skill, experience,
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, as well as the experience,
professional knowledge and other diversifying factors of the Board as
a whole, in order to select a candidate (or candidates) who contributes
to a Board that would be diverse and well-rounded and would have
members who have the relevant experience required, or expected to be
required, by the Company. All candidates proposed by the Nomination
Committee must meet the standards set out in Rules 3.08 and 3.09
of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director must also meet the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Qualified candidates
will be recommended to the Board for approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity

The purpose of the Board Diversity Policy is to increase diversity at
the level of the Board; to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and
quality of its performance; and to support the attainment of strategic
objectives, values and plans and sustainable and balanced development
of the Company.

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to regional, industry
and professional experience, skills and knowledge, relevant length
of services, gender, age, race, ethnicity, cultural and educational
background and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidate(s) will
bring to the Board.

Currently, the Board consists of four female members and seven male
members, which has a diversified gender composition. Meanwhile, the
Board has not set any specific gender ratio or gender diversity in the
members of the Board or in the workforce, in that the criteria adopted
for selection, nomination or appointment is based on diverse factors to
be considered as mentioned above. Diversity is not considered to be
achieved for a single gender Board. The Company should appoint and
the Nomination Committee should nominate and monitor the Board
and workforce (including senior management) of different gender
who genuinely possess the necessary skills, experience and caliber
appropriate to the Company’s business and succession planning. For
the gender ratio in workforce (including senior management), please
refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024-
2025” of the Company which should be published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company at the same time upon the
publication of this annual report.

The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the Board
Diversity Policy and recommend any revisions thereof (if appropriate)
to the Board.

For diversity of the members of the Board in terms of qualifications,
skills and knowledge, age, ethnicity, relevant years of experience and
expertise and relationships (including business, financial and family, if
any) among them and between the Chairman and CEO (if any), please
refer to the “Profile of Management” and the section on “Directors’
interests in competing business” in the “Directors’ Report” on pages
15 to 18 and pages 36 to 48 respectively of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2025 and up to 26 September 2025, a
meeting was held and resolutions in writing signed by all members
was passed by the Nomination Committee for, amongst others, the

following in accordance with its terms of reference:

1. reviewed and revised the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee in line with the amendments to the CG Code;

2. assessed and recommended to the Board the appointment
of Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan as Alternate Director of the
Company; and the nomination of Mrs. TAN Carmen K. as

member of the Nomination Committee;

3. reviewed the size, composition and structure and diversity of the
Board, and assessed the balance of skills and experience of the
Board as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Group;

4.  reviewed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

5. reviewed the retirement and re-election of Directors for the year
ended 30 June 2025.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) since 1999 with terms of reference, which meet the
requirements as set out in paragraph D.3.3 of the CG Code. During the
year, the Board has delegated the functions of corporate governance to
the Audit Committee with additional terms of reference as set out in
paragraph A.2.1 of the CG Code. The members of the audit committee
during the year ended 30 June 2025 and as at 26 September 2025 are as
follows:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*
Mr. GO Patrick Lim
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Audit Committee
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties
including but not limited to:

Relationship with the auditors

1. to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

3. to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor to supply non-audit (non-assurance) services;

Review of the financial information, financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems

4. to review and monitor integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the annual results/report, half-year results/report
and accounts of the Company and to review significant financial

reporting judgments contained in them;

5. toreview the Group’s financial reporting system including
financial and accounting policies and practices; and to review
external auditor’s management letter, any material queries
raised by the auditor to management about accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and management’s
responses, and to ensure that the Board will provide a
timely response to the issues raised in the external auditor’s
management letter;

6.  to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems and to consider major
investigation findings on risk management and internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and

management’s responses to these findings;

7. to ensure coordination between the internal and external

auditors, and to review and monitor its effectiveness;
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)
Relationship with employees

8. to review arrangement for employees of the Group to raise
concerns about possible improprieties of financial reporting,

internal control, whistle-blowing policy or other matters; and

Corporate governance function

9. to review and monitor corporate governance functions delegated
by the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2025 and up to 26 September 2025,
three meetings were held and three resolutions in writing were
passed by the Audit Committee for, amongst others, the following in
accordance with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee:

1. recommended the re-appointment of the external auditor; and
reviewed the financial reporting system and procedures of risks
management and internal control systems of the Group; and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2025;

2. approved the engagement of the external auditor for non-
audit (non-assurance) services and reviewing interim results;
and reviewed the unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 31 December
2024;

3. reviewed and monitored the policies and practices on corporate
governance under A.2.1 of the CG Code, and compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements as stated in corporate
governance report of the Group for the years ended 30 June
2024 and 2025 and as disclosed in the interim report for the six
months ended 31 December 2024; and

4. reviewed the internal audit function of the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 30 June 2025, audit and non-audit services
were provided to the Group by an independent firm, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”). The
total remuneration in respect of services provided by the Auditor
amounted to approximately HK$2,019,000, of which approximately
HK$1,780,000 was incurred for statutory audit and approximately
HK$239,000 was incurred for non-audit (non-assurance) services

mainly on preliminary announcement and review of interim results.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The Auditor’s statement of reporting responsibilities and report
on material uncertainty (if any) of the Group are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 49 to 55 to this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

Risk is inherent in the Group’s business and the markets in which it
operates. To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the
Company may be exposed, the Board is responsible for establishing
and overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
has been properly conducted. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee have included its responsibility for an effective system
of risk management and internal control. The main features of these
systems, which continue to operate, were described in this “Corporate

Governance Report”.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2025, the Board and the Audit Committee
have delegated the management to conduct and complete a review in
respect of the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems of business and operations of the Group. Such
review conducts annually and covers all material controls including
strategic and planning, financial, operational, environmental, social
and governance and compliance controls, and risk management

functions.

In respect of the year ended 30 June 2025, the Company reviewed
and conducted risk assessment based on the framework comprising of
five core stages (i.e. risk identification, prioritisation, risk responses,
risk monitoring and risk reporting) to address changes in the business
environment of the Company and its subsidiaries for sustainable
development and growth.

The Board’s annual review is, in particular, to ensure the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions. The Board’s annual review, in particular,

considers:

1. the changes, since the last annual review, in the nature and
extent of significant risks, and the Company’s ability to respond

to changes in its business and the external environment;

2. the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems, and where applicable,
the work of its internal audit function and other assurance

providers;

3. the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the Board (or Board committee(s)) which enables it
to assess control of the Company and the effectiveness of risk
management;
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS (Continued)

4.  significant control failings or weaknesses that have been
identified during the period. Also, the extent to which they have
resulted in unforeseen outcomes or contingencies that have had,
could have had, or may in the future have, a material impact on
the Company’s financial performance or condition; and

5. the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for financial
reporting and Listing Rule and regulatory compliance.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure in the process of attaining business objectives. The review of
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year has been concluded and based on the results of the annual
review, the Board considers them effective and adequate. Please refer
to the “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” of the Group in the year for
details of such review in the “Directors’ Report” on pages 36 to 48 of
this annual report.

The Group has also engaged internal audit function and no material
control failure or significant areas of concern or fraud which might
affect the interests of the Shareholders were identified during the

reviews.

The Company has adopted inside information disclosure policy,
maintain a framework for the handling and dissemination of inside
information and the disclosure policy of the framework sets out the
procedures and internal controls to ensure inside information remains
confidential until such information is appropriately disclosed and the
announcement of such information is made in a timely manner in
compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing
Rules.

Whistle-blowing and anti-corruption policies are established. More
details and the mechanism of the policies could be found in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024-2025” of the
Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
is responsible for facilitating the Board’s policy and procedures being
followed with good information flow. In addition, the Company
Secretary advises the Directors on governance matters and facilitates
induction and professional development of Directors.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject
to Board’s approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. The Company
Secretary, Ms. WONG Oi Yee, Polly is an employee of the Group and
has complied with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 30
June 2025.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy. The
Company regards communication with its Shareholders and investors
as an essential means to enhance the transparency of the Group and
regularly collects views and feedback from them, to safeguard the
interests of its Shareholders and investors. To this end, the Company
communicates with its Shareholders through various channels,
including annual general meetings, special general meetings, annual
and interim reports, notices of general meetings, circulars sent to
Shareholders, announcements, press releases and other corporate
communications available on the website of the Company. The
Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders communication policy during the year. After considering
the channels of the shareholders communications, the Company
considered that the shareholders communication was effective during
the year.

At the annual general meeting on 13 December 2024 (the “AGM”),
the chairman of the Board, management and external auditor of the
Company together with the chairmen and/or members of the Board’s
committees attended the AGM either in person or via electronic means
to answer relevant questions raised by and understand the views of the
Shareholders thereat. In respect of the year ended 30 June 2025, an
annual general meeting of the Company will be held on 12 December
2025, at which the Company will arrange for the Chairmen of the
Board and committees of the Board (as appropriate) to attend and
answer questions and proposals raised by the Shareholders thereat.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS (Continued)

Shareholders, investors and the media can make enquiries or proposals

to Board of the Company through the following means:

Telephone:  (852) 2881 5221
Fax: (852) 2881 5224
Website: www.dynamic.hk
Email: info@dynamic-hk.com
Post: 17th Floor

Eton Tower

8 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

By virtue of section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 (Bermuda) (as

amended), the procedures for Shareholders to convene a special

general meeting and to put forward proposals at general meetings are:

1.

The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Bye-laws shall,
on the requisition of member(s) of the Company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
forthwith proceed duly to convene a special general meeting of
the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Victoria Place, 5th Floor,
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more

requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be

held after the expiration of three months from the said date.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EXREBRESE @)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which is the policy of the Board for recommending and declaring
dividends to allow the Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits, and to maintain adequate cash reserves for business operations,
development and growth of the Group. The Dividend Policy is subject
to review from time to time.

According to the Bye-laws, the Company in general meeting may
declare dividend(s) but no dividend(s) shall exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. The Board may from time to time
declare such interim dividends to the Shareholders as the Board thinks
appropriate. In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take
into account, inter alia, the actual and expected financial performance
of the Group; retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group; the level of the debts
to equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial covenants
of the Group; any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the lenders (if any) of the Group; the expected working
capital requirements and future expansion plans of the Group; general
economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and any other factors
that the Board deem appropriate.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 30 June 2025, there were no significant
changes in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Company’s memorandum
of association and Bye-laws are available on both the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors (the “Directors”) of Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) present their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2025.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are property investment and property
development. The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year, the Group’s revenue was derived primarily from rental
business activities conducted in Chinese Mainland. An analysis of the
Group’s performance for the year by operating segment is set out in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

A review of the Group’s business, including an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators, the important
events (if any) affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year and the likely future developments, is set out in
the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report. Details of capital risk management and financial
risk management are set out in notes 28 and 29 to the consolidated

financial statements respectively.
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to supporting environmental sustainability
and strives to comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations
regarding environmental protection and to adopt measures to achieve
efficient use of resources, energy conservation and waste reduction.
Further details will be disclosed in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2024-2025” of the Company which should be
published on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company respectively at the
same time upon publication of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the risk of non-compliance with such
requirements. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2025 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. Further discussions on
the Group’s compliance with laws and regulations are set out in the

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024-2025”.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship
in a sustainable manner with its various stakeholders including
its shareholders and investors, employees, customers, suppliers,
contractors, service providers, regulatory bodies and community
as well as enhancing collaboration with our business partners for
sustainable growth and development of the Group. Details are set out
in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024-2025” and
“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

In respect of the year ended 30 June 2025, the Group reviewed and
conducted the process of risk identification and assessment and had
identified certain corporate level and business divisional risks. There
are a number of factors affecting the results and business operations of
the Group. A non-exhaustive list of principal risks and uncertainties of

the Group and control measures for the year is set out below:
Financial Risk

There was a significant financial risk arisen from the fluctuation of
fair value of investment properties and properties under development,
which accounted for the highest portion (97%) of the Group’s total
assets. The prolonged downturn of the property market in Chinese
Mainland together with uncertainties in the geopolitical and economic
environment further triggered market uncertainty and instability,
resulting in a significant change in fair value of investment properties
and properties under development.

During the year ended 30 June 2025, the Group was developing the
land plot no. K709-0003 (the “Land”). The Land was a challenge of
new business segment to the Group. Property development business
consists of multiple stages which requires substantial cash outflows
before completion of properties. The Group might be exposed to
financial and liquidity risk arising from necessary construction and

development costs to be incurred by the Group.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

Financial Risk (Continued)

Meanwhile, the financial position of the Group remained sound and
liquid, and its financing and treasury policies were managed and
controlled at the corporate level and in a prudent manner during the
year. The healthy cash-flow position of the Group arising from the
adherence to prudent cash flow management also strengthened the
Group’s ability to sustain the new property development segment
in the future. The projected construction and development costs of
the property development will be funded by internal resources, bank
financing and such other applicable means as appropriate. Various
major banks indicated terms in financing the property development of
the Land, in which the Group will strive for the best financing of the
development project to mitigate the financial risk.

Market Risk

The income stream of the Group was mainly derived by the Group’s
investment properties which were located in Beijing and Shanghai.
The properties of the Group, particularly the office tower in Shanghai,
continued to face challenges of intense competition from new supply
waves, subdued market sentiment, downward trend of rental rate
and leasing demand. The challenging and highly competitive market
condition and unstable growth of the property rental segment in
Beijing and Shanghai adversely affected the Group’s property rental
performance and financial condition in the year, in addition to the
default risk of tenants and the risk of tenants’ relocation. In addition,
being a real estate developer in Shenzhen represents a new business
segment to the Group and there might be unexpected risks associated
in entering a new market.

Meanwhile, the Group had proactively reviewed and taken mitigation
action to reduce the impact on its property leasing business. To
mitigate the risks and stabilise the income stream of the Group, it
continued to implement a multi-facet strategy, which included but
not limited to refine leasing and marketing approaches, optimize the
tenant/brand mix, offer an aggressive and flexible rental package
for tenants’ retention and new tenants, and renovate or refurnish
the properties from time to time. For the new property development
segment, the Group had been working closely with various relevant
government authorities, professionals, consultants and parties on
different development options and master planning of the Land
in alignment with the city planning and infrastructure (including
development of metro line and station) for cultural and leisure facilities
in the region and the opera house nearby to mitigate unexpected risks
in new market entry.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

Social and Economic Risk

The economic environment in China and global economies
remained highly uncertain, resulting from the geopolitical tensions
and slower-than-expected recovery in the global market. The
Group might therefore be exposed to higher risk arising from a
number of macroeconomic factors, particularly the volatility and
fluctuation of Renminbi and market interest rate during the year.
These macroeconomic factors might have significant impact on the
results of the Group’s operations due to the fact that Renminbi is the
functional currency of the Group and recurring rental income from
property investment segment. The high interest-rate environment
and uncertainties about the US interest-rate movement might also
represent a risk of higher cost of financing to be borne by the Group in
the future.

The risk of interest rate and foreign exchange posed to the Group were
reduced by managing the assets and liabilities of the Group flexibly
and effectively to maximise the interest income and minimise the
currency risk. The Group also maintained a low-to-nil gearing ratio
to minimise the exposure of risk related to fluctuations of interest
rate and the Group continued to closely monitor the impact of the

fluctuation of RMB in order to minimise its adverse impact.

Compliance and Environmental, Social and Governance Risk

The Group had material interests in office, residential and commercial
property investment and development in Chinese Mainland and
was therefore subject to the increasing and changing regulatory
requirements including but not limited to environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) risk and reporting associated with the mainland
property market. The Group also proactively identified and managed
the ESG risks particularly on the property development which were
essential to the Group for sustainability including climate change,
efficiency use of natural resources and waste management for
environmental aspect; social aspect and governance aspect. Further
details and disclosure of the ESG risks and how the risks are addressed
are included in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2024-2025” of the Company.

The Group had constantly monitored and identified all applicable
laws, regulations and standards that affected its business, and also
kept abreast with updates and changes to comply with the related laws
and regulation. And the Group also actively pursued recognised green
certifications for its investment properties and property development
to reinforce its commitment to sustainability.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 138 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2025 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 56.

DIVIDENDS

On 7 January 2025, a final dividend of 0.5 Hong Kong cents per share
was paid to the Company’s shareholders as a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2024.

An interim dividend of 0.5 Hong Kong cents per share amounting to
HK$1,189,000 was paid to the shareholders of the Company during the
year. On 26 September 2025, the Directors recommended the payment
of a final dividend of 0.5 Hong Kong cents per share amounting to
HK$1,189,000 payable to the shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 19
December 2025 which, in aggregate, will give a total of dividends for
the year ended 30 June 2025 of 1 Hong Kong cent per share.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and properties under development of
the Group are set out in notes 13 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the

year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director of the Company should
be entitled to be indemnified by the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and liabilities incurred by him or her
in the course of his or her duties or in relation thereto pursuant to its
bye-laws (the “Bye-Law(s)”) of the Company. Such provisions were
in force during the year and remained in force as at the date of this
report. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal action against
Directors and senior management of the Company arising out of
corporate business and/or activities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
were the retained profits of HK$205,632,000 as at 30 June 2025.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. TAN Lucio C., Chairman

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, Chief Executive Officer
Mrs. TAN Carmen K.

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy

Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao

Ms. TAN Irene Khao

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Mr. GO Patrick Lim

Mr. NGU Angel

Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony

Alternate Director:

Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan
(Alternate Director to Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K.)
(appointed on 30 June 2025)

In accordance with Bye-Laws 99 and 102 of the Company’s Bye-
Laws, Dr. TAN Lucio C., Mrs. TAN Carmen K., Mr. GO Patrick
Lim and Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony will retire by rotation, and
Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan will hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, and all being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed,
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Law 99, for a term of two years and they have confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
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Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan (note iii)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2025, the interests and short positions held by the
Directors or the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their
associates in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”), shares of any
of its associated corporations and underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules were as follows:

HH T
WERBYA (FH)
Number of issued ordinary Shares held
(long position)
LEE A
CHiTRA
BABES  KEHER CRES BaRY RHAkAY
Total interests
as approximate
Personal Family Other Aggregate percentage of
interests interests interests interests issued share capital
() (W#E)
(note iv) (note v)
2,190,000 2,190,000 89,321,279 93,701,279 39.42%
1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.42%
2,190,000 2,190,000 89,321,279 93,701,279 39.42%
1,582,000 - - 1,582,000 0.67%
1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.42%
- 1,582,000 - 1,582,000 0.67%
Notes:
i. Dr. TAN Lucio C. was deemed to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares as founder

of a private discretionary trust. Dr. TAN was deemed to be interested in 2,190,000
Shares held by his spouse, Mrs. TAN Carmen K., as family interests under Part
XV of the SFO.

ii. Mrs. TAN Carmen K. was deemed to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares which her
spouse, Dr. TAN Lucio C., was interested in as founder of a private discretionary
trust, and 2,190,000 Shares held by Dr. TAN Lucio C. as family interests under
Part XV of the SFO.

iii. Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan was deemed to be interested in 1,582,000 Shares held
by her spouse, Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, as family interests under Part XV of the
SFO.

iv. The references to the 89,321,279 Shares in which Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs.
TAN Carmen K. were interested in or taken to be interested in relate to the same
block of Shares.

v. The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 237,703,681 Shares) as at 30 June
2025.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025 43



DIRECTORS’' REPORT (Continued)
EEHEE )

HRZ BB RRT ()

B b ST 4 R A AN > MR R R B 2R 352 MR AR
ORI EAR B 2 RE A 44 TP A SRR B
BRI R #A B L A S T i R 2 5
ZAEHESY QI B M AR 8 /) OB BT > #
A% m B AT BN B OIS A T B RO R
SERCHFEANA=ZTH S MEAEAR LN A
AT ol W 8 2% /) (08 38 L% R 1 26 XV ) 1Y
AT Ao M Ay~ A BRI A 2 2% o A AT T
fit AR o

b ESCr & A BMEF HENA
STHIEFER > EF  RANAREITEA
EERE RN PN R Y e AR ey
AT o] 58 W A ) Bl HAT ] 4% A W) (2 R
B2 M6 AP0 55 XV IR ) AT AT B A HE R ERAE S 1 AT
i -

IR i

AQNFER _F_—HE+_H+tHRER®
TR ME T H o AN T BRI HE T B AY A
A &R T MR TE G S5 24 TH A o

WE T _RHFEANA =T HIEFEE - HE
WREA L A B A HE R B~ MOoRAT O - AT
o~ B R R R R

o 230 B B o 8 2 2 B R

BRI A S 5 MR TEL B R S 24 TH R [ o 2
Je 43 4 2 e IR ) T E A B A o AR R ER
AT Aoy B 2> )R AR R RO & AR N
H =+ B M8 5T 57 AR 72 PR )l AR 2
SR I R A R BT T A N
P Ay AR 5 T A 2 o A AR AN R
19 56 L A8 B8 A T 2 M SR AT T E A~
AT AT o7 5% 55 HEE R DA 8 AR 2 W 2 R O

44

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2025, none of the Directors,
the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the chief executive(s)
of the Company or any of their associates had been granted or
exercised any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt securities of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) during the year ended 30 June 2025.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 17 December
2021. Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 30 June 2025, no share option was granted,
outstanding, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the share option
scheme of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as described in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements and under sections of “Directors’ interests and short
positions in Shares”, at no time during the year and as at 30 June
2025 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, at no time during the year,
subsisted such arrangement(s) as aforesaid and none of the Directors
of the Company, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such rights during the year.

SR E SR IR | A R A



o g0 3B T R v Z M A

RAER R EHEARSE B RE BT RA
A A LLR O B e B R S
He B[] 45 A7 3 T+ BT RE A BT E S P B
AR o

AR > BRACRE L - AL L EIENE
JErE ~ BRAR IRt~ BRAAIN o KRR E %
LI U B B A A ) B
Fe /S8 R 2 0% Rl PR M g K B AT
HIEHS o

MREEGIBIIR LR AF 2 EHE
A B2 T RE B S W% S s W 2 E RS AR
A LA BRI G5 2 F 3 588 HL RS

S A7 Il VB 2 3 S

A5 T AE A B A BRI 2 2 oy 2 RE T
T B T B MR TE M RE S 2708 » &% 55 58 B Tt
H W B — B 26755 1 R v i IE W P 3 R O
17 > Sl % A T AT BOIR B K 84T 5 B IR
F K12 S o FLA IR B B A
e 52 By U 5E 4 S ST b T R AN A Y
AT B IR R S R o B AR 52 R B 1Y
HAE -

PR K A Z

R 48 98 A Ao BV S MR JEL R SR SR 27 JH AL A
) B HL AT e BB 2% W AR A B4R R RT S 2
HEREAH o AR E S E S
e HAMERRAFAE -

HAHSH

AN MR RT S B AR A N R I
AT A S T A AR AT R AR ) 36 B B
LB EH -

g 2 B &

Jv A5 458 A JRE Dt Fe R A 4 O g b R R AT 2
o RN R B AT T M A A T
SEAN AR A R AR B Ak T 2R A
W fH GRE B E RSN 2 IRB & 4 -

DIRECTORS' REPORT (Continued)
EEREEF )

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following
Directors of the Company are considered to have interests in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

Dr. TAN Lucio C., Mrs. TAN Carmen K., Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy,
Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao, Ms. TAN Irene Khao and Mrs. PASCUAL
Sheila Tan held interests and/or directorship in companies engaged
in the businesses of property investment and/or development in Hong
Kong and/or Chinese Mainland in the year.

As the Board of Directors is independent from the boards of the
said companies, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such
companies.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year
are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. These
transactions were sharing of administrative services on cost basis and/
or de minimis transactions as conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business upon normal commercial terms. They constituted
connected and/or continuing connected transactions that were fully
exempted from requirements of disclosure, independent shareholders’
approval and annual review under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
material interests, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group to be
undertaken by a person was entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2025, so far as is known to any Director or chief
executive(s) of the Company, persons (other than the Directors or
the chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

HHOEM WA Ah

HERHYH PRy CARA

(8) (§75:9] HAAAY

Number of Total interests

issued ordinary as approximate

Shares held Total interests percentage of

Capacity (long position) (long position) issued share capital

(Hit=)

(note i)

Zedra Asia Limited Zedra Asia Limited BARHERHZGEFEA  Trustee ofa private 89,321,279 89,321,279 37.58%

Ui discretionary trust (note i)
Mt it Notes:

~— ~  Zedra Asia Limited & % # 1E & LA FA N 2 HE(S 5L 2 05 i. Zedra Asia Limited was taken to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares held by

#C A & {3+ 43 Dynamic Development Corporation fIT -5
F89,321,279 e 2 HE 4 - T H 2B BAT A S
Zedra Asia Limited Ir £ 4 ©

T RTRARTIR AR BB AN R R T A
ANHZ A HZ B AT R 0 48 8 (/1237,703,681 i
) BIE S L e

PR _ESCHT B8R & Ah > R S F AN A =
A H > AL AL O 5% 15 336 k4
TR A 2 B TR M A N (R )
R AT BN BERAN) B A AR B
e 473 AT o7 HE 2 R o
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Dynamic Development Corporation, the entire issued share capital of which was
held by Zedra Asia Limited as trustee for a private discretionary trust.

ii. The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 237,703,681 Shares) as at 30 June
2025.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2025, no other person (other
than the Directors and the chief executive(s) of the Company) had
any interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is recommended
by the remuneration committee of the Company on the basis of
the respective merits, responsibilities and duties, performance,
qualifications and competence taking into account of comparable
market level, operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives of the Board of Directors and relevant legal requirements,
provisions, guidelines and recommendations of regularly bodies. At 30
June 2025, the Group had about 60 employees (including Directors) in
Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland at prevailing market remuneration
with employee benefits such as medical insurance, provident fund
schemes, share option schemes and training.

The emoluments of the respective Directors of the Company are
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company, having
regard to the operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives, individual performance and responsibility and comparable
market statistics. The Directors are entitled to receive a Director’s
fee or emolument on the basis of attendance of meeting of the Board,
meeting of the committee of the Board or general meeting of the

Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the share option scheme
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for 5% of the Group’s revenue and
the percentage of revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were 14% of the total revenue of the Group. The Group’s
largest supplier accounted for 34% of the Group’s purchases and
the percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers in aggregate was 65% of the total purchases of the Group.

Save as those related party transactions are disclosed in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year did
a Director, a close associate of a Director or a shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital (other than
treasury shares (if any)) have an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest suppliers or customers.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 30 June 2025.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 June 2025
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, save and except deviation
from code provision (if any) as set out in the “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in “Corporate Governance

Report” on pages 19 to 35.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

Further details of environmental, social and governance reporting
under Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules has been disclosed in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024-2025” of the
Company which should be published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively at the same time as the
publication of this annual report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to seek shareholders’ approval to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 September 2025
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TO THE MEMBERS OF DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 137, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), as applicable to audits of financial statements of public
interest entities. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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B S 8 il e

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B2 v ¢ il Jun 4y o B B G A i 20 O

Valuation of properties under development

BRI SEHAh

We identified the valuation of properties under development
(“PUD”) on the Group Allocated Land (as defined in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements) as at year ended 30 June
2025 as a key audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
significant estimations involved in determining the net realisable
value (“NRV”) of PUD as at 30 June 2025.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of properties under
development to the consolidated financial statements included:

T 55 A BB MR TE 1Y B R ch ) AT AN (E R T B
RN

0 Obtaining an understanding, and discussing with the

management and the Valuer on the valuations process of
the PUD;

o BRI AN A (L R BE R R ) S R (R R IR
TR0 AF

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;

o APAEfSERE B B E B
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Key audit matter (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter (Continued)
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Valuation of properties under development (Continued)
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Management determined the NRV of PUD as at 30 June 2025
based on valuations performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (the “valuer”) engaged by the Group. The
net realisable value of PUD as at year ended 30 June 2025 was
determined based on residual method, by taking into consideration
key estimates including unit prices for gross development value,
estimated future costs to complete the development of PUD,
developer’s profit and present value adjustment.
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As at 30 June 2025, the Group’s PUD stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value amounting to HK$12,812,177,000
representing approximately 85% of the Group’s total assets. Based
on management’s assessment, no write-down of PUD is required
for the year ended 30 June 2025. Details are set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

WoFERFEANAZTH o AREE R Y E A
S W] 53 B T W 2 A B R A 7 T 12,812,177,000 G
A 42 ) R 4985% o B B M AT > HEZZF
ZHENA ST HIRERE > ME B R YT
{H o FERE RN &5 A A H IR TE I R 55 40H -

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

Evaluating the appropriateness of the Valuer’s valuation
methodology;

P A 2 604

Involving our internal valuation specialists to evaluate the
reasonableness of the unit prices for gross development
value, developer’s profit and present value adjustment;
and
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Evaluating the reasonableness of estimated future cost to
completion the development of PUD.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BIBRBEKESE o)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

. Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BIBRBEKESE o)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats

or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Keung To Wai, David (practising certificated
number: P04578).

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 September 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEREkEtERRER

HE_Z_AFA=FTHILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025
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Revenue
Direct costs

Gross profit

Other income, gains or losses

Decrease in fair value of investment
properties

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Share of profit of a joint venture

(Loss) profit before taxation

Income tax credit (charge)
— current tax
— deferred tax

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for
the year
Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising
on translation of presentation
currency

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

(Loss) profit for the year attributable
to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (expense)
income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) earnings per share
(Hong Kong cents)
Basic

R —F e
2025 2024
T T T T
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
5 64,952 71,573
(23,590) (26,608)
41,362 44,965
6 9,039 3,083
15
(114,974) (23,927)
(27,100 (47,566)
7 (261) (199)
- 12,635,773
8 (91,934) 12,612,129
10
(3,992) (4,331)
33,133 (7,253,522)
29,141 (7,257,853)
(62,793) 5,354,276
5,620 18,460
(57,173) 5,372,736
(62,594) 5,353,955
(199) 321
(62,793) 5,354,276
(57,007) 5,372,015
(166) 721
(57,173) 5,372,736
12
(26.3) 2,252.4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

RS B AR R R

RZZZAF/A=1+H At30June 2025

2025 2024
BT I T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
I i ) ¥ Non-current Assets
LE B TS & ] Property, plant and equipment 13 1,363 1,431
7 HE 5 Right-of-use asset 14 3,190 5,409
&Y E Investment properties 15 1,725,028 1,838,227
B ERER Interest in a joint venture 16 - -
oA Other asset 738 1,189
1,730,319 1,846,256
Y ¥ Current Assets
Ei e iE Y/ Properties under development 17 12,812,177 12,797,147
B Gy F A R i HR R K Trade and other receivables and 18(i)
TE AT prepayments 13,264 15,576
FE HE B % R R 3k Amount due from a non-controlling 78
shareholder 839 838
SRAT 8 WA K Fixed bank deposits 18(iii) 195,455 282,909
SRAT &5 0 B & Bank balances and cash 18(iv) 242,872 139,429
13,264,607 13,235,899
i A i Current Liabilities
B S B HAth A R 3K Trade and other payables 19 90,122 87,438
HEAE Lease liabilities 20 2,325 2,194
A B TE Tax payable 89,828 88,828
182,275 178,460
W& A Net Current Assets 13,082,332 13,057,439
5 i 48 U B £ 4 Total Assets less Current Liabilities 14,812,651 14,903,695
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
EEMBRAE &)

MZZE-_RFA=+H At30June 2025

ZRHAE ZER 4R
2025 2024
BT I T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000

7S K il Capital and Reserves
B A Share capital 21 237,704 237,704
ot Reserves 7,057,616 7,117,001

ENASTE PN XY B Equity attributable to owners of

the Company 7,295,320 7,354,705

I P L HE 2% Non-controlling interests 39,773 39,939

B 2 Total Equity 7,335,093 7,394,644
E SRR Non-current Liabilities

R SE B TE B R Deferred tax liabilities 22 7,469,440 7,496,793

Ol = HAFE & e 4 Long-term rental deposits received 6,990 8,805

HEAE Lease liabilities 20 1,128 3,453

7,477,558 7,509,051

14,812,651 14,903,695

W FES6EI13TH L4 A M IRIE B =%  The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 137 were
“HE AT ASHBHEFGHAAZ LA approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

FIED > 3lff N A R ARREE - September 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:
#HFE #HH Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan ~ Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
A A 8 F ek DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERZB2IR

For the year ended 30 June 2025

BE-_Z-_AFAA=1THLFE

LYTE TN 3]
Attributable to owners of the Company
g3 1] FER
B BBEA  AEBIGE Bl BRBE  JCRBE Bl RE it i st
Capital Non-
Share Share Special  redemption  Translation Other ~ Statutory  Refained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Sub-total interests Total
BEFT  ERTT BHFT EFFT  EFFT gFT  EEFT ORI
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 001 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000
(Wit ®) Witz) (KR
(note ) (note b) (note ¢)
R-Z-=%#tH—H At July 2023 237,704 438475 55018 1,644 76,110 92451 10172 1073494 1,985,008 39218 2,04286
R Profit forthe year - - - - - - SS9 538395 53406
RERERIIERZ Exchange differences arising on
EizH translation of presentation currency = = = = 18,060 = - - 18,060 400 18460
FERRRASH Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - - 18,060 - - 5339 53008 n S3Nn6
BREEER Transfer to stautory reserve - - - - - - M (34 - - -
ERBARNRE Dividends recognised as distribution
(HE#11%) (rote 11) - - = = - . = @3 - (2379)
RZZZMERAZHA At30 June 2024 237,704 438475 55,018 1,644 94170 92451 10206 6425037 7354705 39939 7394644
FERA Loss for the year = = = = = = -5 (625%) (19)  (6279)
RABHEF &R Exchange differences arsing on
EizH translation of presentation currency = = = - 5,581 = - = 5,587 3 5,600
FEREUNA L) 88 Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year - - - - 5387 - SR () (166 (LT
BERRARNRE Dividends recognised as distibution
W) (ot 11 - - - - - - - em -
REBZHEERAZTH At 30 June 2025 237,704 438475 55,018 1,644 99,757 92451 10206 6360065 7,295,320 N 133509
Mt Notes:
(H) A4 [ 2 45 I A6 48 7 A 1 7 Wi 42 18] 00 4L P i B 22 (a) The special reserve of the Group arose from the difference between the aggregate
[ Jag 2 ) R B 2 A~ ROy e A — R B AR amount of the share capital, share premium, general reserve and retained profits of
B W R 2 40 (E B A 2N | i i S TE BT R AT 2 IRy the subsidiaries acquired, and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued
T B 2= 3R o for the acquisition in relation to a previous group reorganisation.
() ALz HAifEMg I HEERA AN G4 (b) The other reserve of the Group represents deemed contributions from equity
ANzt RBE_EEZNENA=ZTH ILERE holders of the Company which arose from the difference between the fair value
A B AT S HE A ARAE 2 AN B (R B A i i B R of consideration paid and payable and the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
BAF T TG AIEE - A MR A E liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired through acquisition of the subsidiaries
ZAF N TEE M 2 R E A during the year ended 30 June 2006.
(7)) AR5 B vk M) el g 2 3k o Rl A 22 50 78 R A AR 2 ) (©) The statutory reserve transferred from retained profits are required by relevant

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

rh e AR R (T B D) iy B 4 W) 2 b A
B ROk LT HLE o BRI AR G S AR
50% » AU Bk I B TS IR T 0 4 B AN 13 D R B AR
T A 9 10% ©

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws and regulations applicable to
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be less than 10% of
the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial statements unless the
aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered capital.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

an e EE @ NiL ; ﬁ

HE_Z_AFA=FTHILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

R TR ZER 4R
2025 2024
BT BT T
HKS$°000 HK3$°000
BB RH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R BEHT (548 T A1 (Loss) profit before taxation (91,934) 12,612,129
R Adjustments for:
B A Interest income (7,588) (7,032)
BEYWEANTHEHZ WD Decrease in fair value of investment properties 114,974 23,927
M~ B Kk Z ¥ Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 387 425
FRAEEE T8 Depreciation of right-of-use asset 2,219 2,242
WY - B Loss on disposals of property, plant and
k&5 15 equipment 58 7
Rl A Finance costs 261 199
A B A o Share of profit of a joint venture - (12,635,773)
I 58 B 2 e S0 i 25 T RE Unrealised exchange gain, net (562) (4,297)
e HA & & 2 Wi(EE518  Impairment losses recognised on other asset 450 =
JRE W 5 B A Impairment losses recognised on trade
TGS EEET receivables under expected credit loss model
i 58 2 Mg 18 9K (L 632 1,082
G ERKAETBES  Impairment losses recognised on amount due
FE R T R from a joint venture under expected credit
WA 18 loss model - 2,153
R A s W 2 R Operating cash flows before movements in
B4 ik i working capital 18,897 (4,938)
B 5 R HoAth B i B 3R I (Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables
FE AT 2 () > and prepayments (879) 4,395
B G T HoAth B A BR 3K Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables
o ) 608 (4,333)
B EE e v ) 2 Addition of properties under development (4,754) (32,595)
HH (HIR) 882 B4 Cash generated from (used in) operations 13,872 (37,471)
£ A B i f%ﬁ, PRC Income Tax paid (3,065) (3,723)
KA (R BBEEHZ NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
BEeFR OPERATING ACTIVITIES 10,807 (41,194)
BEE D INVESTING ACTIVITIES
GEAEERERIE Repayment from a joint venture - 230,564
2 AR Interest received 7,588 123,571
A [\ SR AT 2 AT K Withdrawal of fixed bank deposits 139,163 88,683
A 1] SR AT HE HF A7 2K Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits - 9,419
WEYE - B Ak Purchase of property, plant and equipment 377 (607)
Badn % &Y 2 Additions of investment properties (1,060) (2,545)
] 5 /8 A 2 TE A BUH Advance to a joint venture - (112,656)
TENSRAT 52 W A7 K Placement of fixed bank deposits (52,062) (287,943)
KABREFHEHZ NET CASH FROM INVESTING
BEFR ACTIVITIES 93,252 48,486
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
GEeWRERER &)

BEZT-_AFA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

R TR P4
2025 2024
BT BT C
HKS$’000 HK$’000
% W) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
2T A Dividends paid (2,378) (2,378)
RS B Repayment of lease liabilities (2,194) (2,085)
2 At FLE Interest paid (261) (199)
JH I o 3 B 2 B4 CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (4,833) (4,662)
e RBEFMEFH M NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 99,226 2,630
AERZB A KBS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 139,429 130,020
Kb BE 58 i % 5 ) 2 5 EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGE 4,217 6,779

ERZBERBE%MH > CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
DLERAT 45 8% I Bl RoR represented by bank balances and cash 242,872 139,429
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate and Investor
Information” in the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
31.

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKS$”) as the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
consider that HK$ is the most appropriate presentation currency in
view of the Company’s place of listing.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that
are mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)

for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s

annual period beginning on 1 July 2024 for the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Amendments to HKAS 7 and  Supplier Finance Arrangements

HKFRS 7

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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A MBIREMNE (4
HEZT-_AFA=1HLEFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in issue
but not effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Contracts Referencing Nature-
dependent Electricity?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture!
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to HKFRS

Accounting Standards Accounting Standards — Volume
113

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statements*

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027

Except as described below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in issue
but not effective (Continued)

Impacts on application of HKFRS 18 “Presentation and
Disclosure in Financial Statements” (“HKFRS 18”)

HKFRS 18, which sets out requirements on presentation and
disclosures in financial statements, will replace HKAS 1
“Presentation of Financial Statements” (“HKAS 17). This new
HKFRS Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of the
requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements to present
specified categories and defined subtotals in the statement of profit
or loss; provide disclosures on management-defined performance
measures in the notes to the financial statements and improves
aggregation and disaggregation of information to be disclosed in
the financial statements. In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs
have been moved to HKAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors” and HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”. Minor amendments to HKAS 7
“Statement of Cash Flows” and HKAS 33 “Earnings per Share” are
also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with
early application permitted. The application of the new standard is
expected to affect the presentation of the statement of profit or loss
and disclosures in the future financial statements. The Group is in
the process of assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

3.1

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is considered
material if such information is reasonably expected to
influence decisions made by primary users. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods or services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”), and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value
in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” (“HKAS 36”).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

il

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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HEZT-_AFA=1HLEFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2  Material accounting policy information
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements
of joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture. Changes in
net assets of the joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held
by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interest in that joint venture, the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that joint venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

32 WEGSHBORE R () 3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

A EE ()

NG TR B EESEEH > BHE An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
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equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

A4 H BEAL RS A KB s i R The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
FEAR S AR T RE  BUWE o
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that the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

EAEEE R &SN EE When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the
T2 oW > BEBEEZLGINE
AR E B ) AR AR AR B B Y A s A
ST AL 2 WE A 2 ME TR A AR AR 1 £ A

Group, profits or losses resulting from the transactions with
the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint
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venture that are not related to the Group.

Intangible assets

One or more intangible assets may be acquired in exchange
for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination of
monetary and non-monetary assets. The cost of such an
intangible asset is measured at fair value unless (a) the
exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or (b) the
fair value of neither the asset received nor the asset given up is

reliably measurable.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
building, that are held for administrative purposes, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is presented as
“right-of-use asset” in the consolidated statement of financial
position except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual value using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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3. BROWMBEES WL R EEE 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
wHBORE B a7) CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

32 WEGHIERER (&) 3.2  Material accounting policy information (Continued)
VERE T VT4 Kb Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
TAE L R e 2 A R (4) Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

(Continued)

M - WSS R TE B A R An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
T HA 0 4 0 5% S A AR Rk upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
KR 4 IRF A IR AR o B E expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
FEWEE -~ WA M T B RE BT E AR gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
AT AT 38 25 DA B BT A5 3K 0 B % property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
B REE 2 28T E > 0B & between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
NHERR - asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
HEWE Investment properties
B 2 5 R AR RO S i A K Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
AEEARBEH Y - or for capital appreciation.
& Wy 2w W AR A (3G AT Ao Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
AL FHE o N E KR any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
%> BEYETTEEATE > IFH recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
B R AL AT ] TEAS TR R AR v A values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
B - 8GR A (8 5 B r lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair
7E A 2 48 28 51 A BT E AR T 2 v A value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
B - for the period in which they arise.
EREYE B B> SUE KR B An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
F Rz A% G W) 3 B TE B 7E & R R when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
& 7 AE AT ] R 2 SR 5 R £ IRE > I AR from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
IETERBARR o R IL MR Y its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
A 2 AT e i 7 B 4R (4% L B the property (calculated as the difference between the net
BT A5 B 2 T A A R IR TH (2 disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
ERFR) > REZHEKILERZ included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
Wi A A e derecognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be sold upon
completion of development and are classified as current
assets. Properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
specific identification bases including the cost of land,
development expenditure and other attributable costs. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale. Net realisable value is determined by reference
to the management estimates based on prevailing market
conditions. Costs necessary to make the sale include both
incremental costs and other cost necessary to sell inventories.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of carparks portion that have a lease term
of twelve months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in

dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use asset is
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use asset that does not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
Right-of-use asset that meets the definition of investment
property and inventory are presented within “investment
properties” and “properties under development” respectively.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2  Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and

included in the cost of right-of-use asset.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted

by interest accretion and lease payments.
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3.2
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
when the lease term has changed in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Variable lease
payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments
to be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.
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3. BOWMBEES WL R EEEG 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
wHBORE B a7) CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 HEGHERER (4) 3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
B Taxation
Jift 1585 52 48 B IRy K 2R 4iE FiT 15 B TE Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
X )RR o deferred income tax expense.
T IR B A ol T T 4 AR A B R G B Uk The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
FIFESL o JETRBL ek A1) BB AL T s year. Taxable profit differs from the profit before taxation
AN s Th A EAlAF B B 2 ik because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
A BT 2 B S > F KOS ZE R BR in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
FENRN 2 T H o AN 42 3] (1) 35 B E A The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that
Tl T 55 7 4% i S5 S 40 R A have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
K LM 2 BRFE - reporting period.
e SO T T 4 B TR R TE I Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
T B A T T BRL 5 G B LB Ve B r between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
BF FH AR B 5L 2 BT R 22 BE AR o 1R consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
JIE 5 TE B — Bk T A RE SR BT R base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
ZERARERD T8 E B IE B A — ik HI liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
A AT Bl ek B e 2 AR T RE g T differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
il ) B LB Vi R IR T A AT T Ry all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
PEZERE T LLIERR o A — I3 H v > probable that taxable profits will be available against which
HAE E K A2 W2 R 5B those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
R AS 5% 2 R SR B Jas A =& S R 2 deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
WP SR M A AT G R I A A AR R temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
[vi) JE B B AT ek IR 22 AR 0 I RZ other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
SR S Bl JE G E e BN THERR o the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time

of the transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

I A B8 TE S TG H R B E A T Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
A S ME 25 A0 B 2 R SRR IR 25 differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
T AR > M A 4 [ T 42 o 5% Iy interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able
FEZ BN . AZY AR to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
7 AT 53N A B A o BRLRZ S probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
1 JRE 7 A BR 2 A 4 2 AR foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
B AR SIE B TEEE EE A T RE A DL B temporary differences associated with such investments and
AR B T A B R 2 0 R 25 R TR W AE interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
A 5 A 188 ] IRE AR - that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to

utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

I JE B IE & A 2 MR T (E TN B The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
AT WA > ' end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
2 300 4 2 A0 R R B Vi ) A it A 3 sk is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
15 =g I A R available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A& B35 AR H B RE o)
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3. BROWMBEES WL R EEE 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
wHBORE B a7) CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 HEGHERER (4) 3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
B (#) Taxation (Continued)
S A T e B AR PR 2 O Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
KM B R 2 A 2 B rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
(B B0 925 ) Fe 7E 30 i 0 A1 B & liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax
56 B 300 T 0 ) 22 Bl RS o rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

PEIERIEE = M B E 2 5l & A The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
A5 R R IR IR o T B B [m] B the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
P L A N B Y R T (B B which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
BAR o to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

ME A A FEAEXFEZHREY For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
£ 7 R G B TE B A B8 A B TE S E properties that are measured using the fair value model,
TME o 5532 IR TE (B 5 the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
7 B Aol - M A B RGR recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
BAEE > R S AER G o WRZREY rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
N T WARE—HE A property is depreciable and is held within a business model
fep [H] 11 JF 8 48 Hh B TH RE R B whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
AR EB Ay SRR 4 2 AR economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
o HIRZ T sl - time, rather than through sale.

W R B A 4 1] e R M AR For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
B L B R Y A B 2 ) A0 A o I transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
T AR W A A O B W O A use asset and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
B g o I RE R PR B - determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the

right-of-use asset or the lease liabilities.

Aol DR L B A T AR B TE I e 9 L For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
BXRSME » AL RIEEEA attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
8 LA B & F s & st e H s 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to lease liabilities and the
1258 [ Fr 1980 |2 » ASE [ Lo fig related assets separately. The Group recognises a deferred
TRUAS P AR 3 8 AT 22 AT 3 IR tax asset related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is
72 RE RO R FRBE Wi R 4 B R B AL probable that taxable profit will be available against which
BB R AH B 0 R A T AR LG E I the deductible temporary difference can be utilised and a
BT A R R B e 2 AR T T R A T deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

BLA L
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

32 WEETHBORE R (4) 32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

S (4F) Foreign currencies (Continued)
WA A B IR S - A% H
AP B 2 R R B AR B R A )
R BT MR 0 2 A SR [ 2 2 5]
W (BHE W) - T B 32 s Rl
WIR-F R MER B > BRIF Rz 2
Bl %< 1 B TR R > RO
RIKE$% 22 5 B9 2 BE S o Jfr e 2
BE 50 25 52 (A0 A ) i A 4 T i A
it R SIG J7 HEE 4 LR T 0ok 4 b
(g e - R e R R IR b ) o

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HKS$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

A SR T F N B R 5 R
HALENEIN G (ER) A
Io# B4 T 5 25 B % 7R HoAt A T I A
RS o Ol B A BE LG o BE
SLREM T R E LB R A
HAT O EIRA -

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in RMB to the Group’s presentation
currency (i.e. HKS$) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in translation
reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
translation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.

B 1k Fid A it 3 e A Retirement benefits costs
T L NR AR (M)
Z 5L OB R AR A o TR
HiRERA o A & o D
Z AL M8 B B A IR B A S
s AT AL FRIRE > 1 2 S i 1B -

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits plans
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are charged as expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

TR A Short-term employee benefits
18 AR AR B B 4 IR B
TEL A S A 2 A R A R T B 4 A
W8 o JTA A U R B AR R 3 0 e R
BHSZ > BR IR 55 A A B 5 i At v
B R E R SR A AR A S G E

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS Accounting Standard requires or permits the

119 A B A 5l

A FUR PR AL AT 2 ST R A AR
18 5 18 st A A (o dn g e g4
BB R) T ATERS o

inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)

after deducting any amount already paid.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers, which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

All financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2  Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and operating lease receivables

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder and fixed bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within twelve
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and operating lease receivables

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

®
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Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and operating lease receivables

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

®

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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A MBIREMNE (4
HEZT-_AFA=1HLEFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2  Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and operating lease receivables

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

a. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

b. a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
3 the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

d. it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and operating lease receivables

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)

)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights. The Group uses
a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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HEZT-_AFA=1HLEFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2  Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and operating lease receivables

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows
used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes past-
due status into consideration when formulating the

grouping.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting
period. Specifically, for financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the ‘other income, gains or losses’ line item (note 6) as
part of the net exchange gain (loss).

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when the Group transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continue to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts
it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables
and long-term rental deposits received) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and
losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss in ‘other income, gains or losses’
line item (note 6) as part of the net exchange gain (loss) for
financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2  Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Share-based payment

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of

the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment

to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be

transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value
cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured
at the date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty
renders the service. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognised as expenses (unless the goods or

services qualify for recognition as assets).
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HE-_T-_AFA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors
are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties located in
the PRC are not held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the Directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the
Group has recognised the deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties as the Group is subject to Land Appreciation
Tax (“LAT”) and Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) on disposal of its
investment properties.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Valuation of properties under development

As at 30 June 2025, the properties under development (“PUD”)
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Significant
estimations were involved in determining the net realisable value
(“NRV?”) of PUD as at 30 June 2025. The net realisable value as at
30 June 2025 is determined based on valuations performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer (the “valuer”) engaged by
the Group, by using residual method, and taking into consideration
key estimates including unit prices for gross development value,
estimated future costs to complete the development of PUD,
developer’s profit and present value adjustment. Based on
management’s assessment, no write-down of PUD is required for
the year ended 30 June 2025.
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HE-_T-_AFA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred taxation on properties under development

The Group is subject to PRC LAT and EIT when the related
properties are developed and being disposed of.

LAT will be levied on properties developed by the Group for sale
in the PRC at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including sales charges, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditures. EIT will be levied
at 10% on the expected future gain on disposal of the subsidiary that
owns the properties under development, being the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary.

Significant estimations are required in determining the amount of
LAT and EIT. The Group recognises these liabilities based on the
management’s best estimates according to the understanding of the
tax rules. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment properties
(including residential, commercial and carparks portion and
office units) are carried at a total fair value of HK$1,725,028,000
(2024: HK$1,838,227,000) based on the valuations performed
by independent qualified professional valuer. The valuations
of investment properties were arrived at by reference to market
evidence of recent transaction prices for similar properties and/or on
the basis of discounted cash flow projections based on estimates of
future rental income from properties using capitalisation rates and
estimated market unit rents of individual units as inputs. In relying
on the valuations, management has exercised its judgment and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties and corresponding adjustments to the amount
of gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of performance focused on
the location of the properties for property rental.

The property rental segment includes property leasing operation
in the PRC. The Group’s investment properties portfolio, which
mainly consists of offices, residential and commercial units and
carparks, are located in Shanghai and Beijing, the PRC. The
property development segment includes the properties under
development in Shenzhen, the PRC.

Property rental analysed based on distinct geographical locations,
are the basis on which the Group reports its segment information
under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

() 23BN K& 4% (a) Segment revenue and results
7 B A AR AR T R 2 N B AR AR The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
TR KR B TR - results by reportable and operating segment for the year:
BTN BRME
Property rental Property under development
LK IR wH gh
Beijing Shanghai Shenzhen Consolidated
“ROHE ZFONE CROAE ZZFCNE CRC0HE ZFONE CRTNE CFCNE
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
EWFL EHTFT EWFL BETI EWFL BT EWFL BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$ 000
ARBA SEGMENT REVENUE
LION REVENUE
Hir e External sales 21,675 29,171 31277 42402 - = 64,952 71,573
Vg B3 SEGMENT RESULTS (23,798) 2407 (50,241) 17,706 (4,988) (939) (79,027) 19,174
FABEAMKA ~ Unallocated other income,

It BB R gains or losses 8,150 2,256
FABAFTH Unallocated corporate expenses (20,796) (44,875)
BB R A Finance costs (261) (199)
AEREZ Share of profit of a joint venture

fekiix - 1esInB
FRBUHT (B R) B Al (Loss) profit before taxation (91,934) 12,612,129
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5. WA Ko BUEB (a1) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
() 433N B3R 4t (4d) (a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

KENSBZ G EOR AL & Segment result represents the (loss) profit from each segment
FTBORMIF - 2 HEHRBEE B2 without the allocation of central administration costs,
(JE548) A > 10 37 4% 43 e o o AT B certain other income, gains or losses (mainly including
B~ #THAB A > 4R 5 R bank interest income, exchange gain (loss), net, impairment
(F Z AL G RAT A B d A~ SRk losses recognised on amount due from a joint venture under
wm(EH) B8 A8 CERKE ECL model and others), finance costs and share of profit of
TE AR B A R T R W a joint venture. This is the measure reported to the Board
B HAL) - BB A A of Directors for the purposes of resources allocation and
2 ¥ A 434 o M T 43 TiE VR K RT performance assessment.

fERBE M EFG LW EER -

(2) nEEEKAR (b) Segment assets and liabilities

hERK R R

Property rental Property under development

E93 L wa A
Beijing Shanghai Shenzhen Consolidated

SROEE CEONE ZR4HE CZOME CR0EE CZONE CR0RE

2005 2024 2005 204 2005 204 2005

#TE  ENTT EMTL ENTr BMTL EFTT 0 BNTE
HES000 HKS 000 HES'000 HKS 000 HES'000 HKS 000 HES'000 HKS 000

Wi ASSETS
NEEE Segment assets 657,441 695,611 1,076,200 L1047 12812505 12797147 14546146 14643229
FOEGEEE Unallocated corporate assets 448,780 438,926
GaRESH Consolidated total assets 14994926 15,082,155
fif§ LIABILITIES
A Segment liabilities 8,521 8,803 22,553 21,749 7,073,452 7,269,255 7,304,526 7,299,867
KA RAEA K Unallocated corporate liabilities 355,307 387,644
GaRfem Consolidated total liabilities 7,659,833 7,687,511
By B PR [E B Ay B E B B IRy For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
fic : allocating resources between segments:
— MRESMSERR - BITEM - all assets are allocated to operating segments other
- BiTsats el & than interest in a joint venture, fixed bank deposits,
HibdEEEIN > 2EEE bank balances and cash and other corporate assets; and

Taor WL KB s R
- BREEATBLIA - R 5E B E A AR

KHEAbAZEA I 2HEA —  all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
&5 75 40 T B 588 i J o than tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other

corporate liabilities.
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5. WA Ko BUEB (a1) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(W) HAb sy mEk (¢)  Other segment information
RS BRME
Property rental Property under development
S L i Vg LTl AR 40
Beijing Shanghai Shenzhen Segment Total Unallocated Consolidated
SRk SRSHE CZCRE CRohk RCiE CZCRE CRChE 5 S0 1 S 4
2005 2005 L 2005 2005 005 2005
#iFr #Fr #iFr o #ffr #iFr
HES'000 HKS'000 HEKS'000 HKS'000 HEKS'000 HES'000
AFEFTEME  Amountsincluded in the measure
£500 8 of segment results or segment
fiEz48 asels
REME R Puchase of propery,
Ritfe lntand equipmen . - : . . - : . m 0 m i
W% BEE  Depreciation of property, plant
REZIE  and equipment §1 9 - - - - §1 % n 3 W i)
[EREREZ  Deprecition ofrghtof-use asset
i - - - - - - N - 20 0 21 m
HMBENE  Additons of investment
propertes - - 1,060 2545 - - 1,060 2345 - - 1,060 2545
RERREELE  Additionof right-ofuse asset - - - - - - - - - 6,598 - 6,598
HMERETE  Additon of propertes under
development - - - - 4754 14551 4754 14551 - - 4754 14551
FEMEATE  Deorease in far value of
ya v investment properties 38,070 1241 76,904 11450 - - 114974 B - - 114974 B
ALMEEL  Impaiment osses recognised on
HEER other asset - = - = - = - = 450 = 450 =
TR Tmpairment losses recognised on
FMERER  tndereccivablesunder ECL
BATELZ  model
BiRRE 5 8 % 93 - - 632 1082 - - 63 1082
ABRERHE  Impaiment ossesrecognised
FEMEEER  onamount due froma joint
BATHZZ  venture under ECL model
HEER - = - - - - - - - 2153 - bR
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A ERIBEMEE (@)

BEZT-_AFA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

5. WA Ko BUEB (a1) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(7)) IR % (d) Geographical information
AEE R BB IEF K REWAT All of the Group’s revenue from external customers are
A B (B s BR AL o located in the PRC (other than Hong Kong).
2 6 L 2 b 3 43 A O U B A The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
HRTE(E 4T - current assets analysed by the geographical area in which the

assets are located:

Ik oS h ¢ e R i L
Carrying amount of
non-current assets
R R T P4
2025 2024
BT BT
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
(s ER AN PRC (other than Hong Kong) 1,726,200 1,839,335
i Hong Kong 4,119 6,921
1,730,319 1,846,256
(k) FHREEEFRZHER (e) Information about major customers
BEEAFER FEDUFENHA During the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024, the Group
ZHIEFEER > R R A 4R [ A J does not have major customers as no single customer
B — & AG A A S [ 10% 19 contributes more than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

A O EEEEF o
6. o AbWCA ~ W2k Bk H 6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES

ZE®HAE TR PO
2025 2024

T W T T
HKS$°000 HKS$'000

HAfe A - Ik 25 80518 4% © Included in other income, gains or losses

are:
SRAT AL E M A Bank interest income 7,588 7,032
REWE 5 B 3k 1 TH B E & Impairment losses recognised on trade

s 4R 20 TERR 2 Uk (E S 1R receivables under ECL model (632) (1,082)
HEMERFEFNAER Impairment losses recognised on amount

i RS =X RR 2 W8 (E A 1R due from a joint venture under ECL

model - (2,153)

Uik S @R Exchange gain, net 562 4,297
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7. BEREAR 7. FINANCE COSTS
e St [ 2 e Sy 1 K
2025 2024
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
AEAEZHE Interest on lease liabilities 261 199
261 199
8. BRBLHT Ol 411) &k Al 8. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
ZRHAE -y 11 2
2025 2024
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
FR AT (&2 W A 2 bR (Loss) profit before taxation has been
(FFA) THIKIHE arrived at after charging (crediting):
2% B M <6 Auditor’s remuneration 2,053 2,575
LEN £ Y & i Depreciation of property, plant and
s equipment 387 425
i IRE G E 2 T8 Depreciation of right-of-use asset 2,219 2,242
WEYE - B R A Loss on disposals of property, plant and
i 18 equipment 58 7
W N 2 L Legal and professional expenses and
consultancy fee 3,965 4,841
WM (W AFEI () IH) Directors’ emoluments (note 9(a)) 3,152 3,564
HAth B Tl A Other staff costs
AN 45 B R AE A w5 # A Z Staff costs excluding retirement benefit
=R N costs 13,837 13,702
K AE FI| 51 R A Retirement benefits costs 911 827
HoAth B T pliAS #0580 Total other staff costs 14,748 14,529
L Wi B JE Wi A8 8 FH S FHL 4 Net operating lease rentals received and
A receivable
BEYEBEE Gross rents from investment properties (64,952) (71,573)
W MEYETEE Less: Direct expenses from investment
H S properties 23,590 26,608

(41,362) (44,965)
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BEZT-_AFA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

9. HHEEHEME 9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
(W) HHM 4 (a) Directors’ emoluments

ZR A
2025

W T
HKS$°000

e Sy 1115
2024
BT T
HK$°000

HREE Directors’ fees
WATESE Executive 1,760 1,680
WL MATHE R Independent Non-executive 1,360 1,840
HoAth T 4 Other emoluments
AR ARAR A F ALK Contributions to retirement benefit
schemes 32 44
3,152 3,564

EMEEMTFH -2 (ZF N
TR EHERZEAMEWT ¢

tenth) Directors were as follows:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven (2024:

Fik RRRA
Wa JebgiAl it B
Salaries Contributions
and other to retirement
Fees benefits  benefit schemes Total
#W I ENTFL #W T #W T
HES'000 HES'000 HES 000 HES'000
Etin Executive Directors
kgL (e =) Dr. TAN Lucio C. (Note i) 3 - . k)]
BOWEE Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 360 - 18 ki)
ARG L Wit =) Ms. TAN Carmien K. (Note i) Eil] - - kil
BEERE Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 20 - 1 %4
Rfilg L Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao M - . M
B+ Ms. TAN Irene Khao 10 - - "
B tr Independent Non-executive Directors
b Pk M. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 360 - - 360
GO Patrick Lim /G £ Mr. GO Patrick Lim 360 - - 360
NGU Angel £ Mr.NGU Angel 280 - - 280
St Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony 360 - - 360
BREY Alternate Director
BRELE (=) Mis. PASCUAL Sheila Tan (Note i) - - - -
3,120 - k) 3,15
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9. WHKREAME w0 9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(W) ESM 4 (4) (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

L E A BIRFEA
H AR A it B B3k

Salaries Contributions
and other to retirement
S benefits ~ benefit schemes Total
BETL  BEFT BETL BETX
HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
ERiE R Executive Directors
BokoR i £ Dr. TAN Lucio C. 240 - - 240
HOWBEE Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 430 = 2% 504
BEHLL Mrs. TAN Carmen K. 240 - - 240
HIENEEE Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 280 = 14 294
Bidd 4 £ Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao 240 - 6 246
BRAR A L Ms. TAN Irene Khao 200 = = 200
BB Ar o 5 Independent Non-executive Directors
HERIE LA Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 480 = = 480
GO Patrick Lim /£ Mr. GO Patrick Lim 520 - - 520
NGU Angel /2 /£ Mr. NGU Angel 320 - - 320
BRELE Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony 520 = - 520
3,520 - 44 3,564

Bitat Notes:

— b HIHLAT HE I A R SR i. The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
B IR 2N W] B A A [ R i A A mainly for their services in connection with the management
R of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

Z bBAUEr R AT E R T E R ii. The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments
T AR S A 5 A A R #E R BT 4R Y shown above were mainly for their services as Directors of
IR % - the Company.

= BBRBELER-FHEANAZ ili. ~ Mrs. PASCUAL Sheila Tan has been appointed as the
+ H LA 7 AT By BRK R L 2 B alternate Director to Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN
FHEL LB EES - Carmen K. with effect from 30 June 2025.
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9. A KR HM L )

(2) e B4

WA AR BE N o BRI EE RO A Sy
T4 e RN o T I R
R £ SCHEFESEO () JH » 4

9.

24 B #EBR 1E B 5 ()

BEZT-_AFA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments
No Directors were included in the five highest paid

individuals for both years. Details of Directors’ emoluments
are set out in note 9(a) above. The emoluments of the five

wEHEMALZME&mT highest paid individuals are as follows:
SR A TR AR
2025 2024
BT 5 For
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FEA 3 4 M A Basic salaries and allowances 5,051 5,333
B P4 A B 3K Contributions to retirement benefit
schemes 147 160
5,198 5,493
%5 2 W 4 A7 BN ALR The emoluments were within the following bands:
fRE¥H
Number of employees
ZRTHAE R YA
2025 AL
4 2 15 11,000,000 70 Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 2
7 % 1,000,001 7 & HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
11,500,000 7T 2 1
7 1,500,001 7C & HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
1 12,000,000 7T 1 2

TP T 18 4F BE A o A SR AR AR 16 A
LA L N DN RO A (el
A B 7 B2 ) IRF 22 46 ) B AR 2 Bl A
B > TR AT o B S AT o P < o

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office, nor any of the Directors has waived any emolument.
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EEMBREME (@)

HE-_ZT-_AFSA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

10. Pifd B Git A) dudk 10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) CHARGE
R TR YA
2025 2024
BYT T T T
HK$°000 HKS$°000
BLIE (FFA) f 15 - The tax (credit) charge comprises:
B IR o ] A 3 BT A5 B EIT in the PRC
(&R (other than Hong Kong)
— AR — Current year 3,992 4331
W AEBLIE (FFA) $138 Deferred tax (credit) charge
(Wit 55227H) (note 22) (33,133) 7,253,522
(29,141) 7,257,853

H A A 4 B AR BE A M A R R B U
A > B %5 & T 785 R JHU A I 91 A 3 T £

AR B A 3 T A5 Bk (1 4 3% B 4 R
) oA AR B E G RO A
P e R N W AR AR 2 BRI
25% °

AN AR A K 2 R A RS BT W A
T W A E 2 B AR o 5 a% 5 A A

T b [ RE SRR R R ok OE SR AR A A > A
Y A R R B A B 10% 2 25% ©

R J0E 5 B R S A B RE B 22 A o

102

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no assessable
profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiary is 25% for
both years.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong
and the British Virgin Islands are subject to withholding tax ranging
from 10% to 25% on their taxable profit or taxable rental income,

management fee income and interest income in the PRC.

Details of the deferred tax liabilities are set out in note 22.
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10. BBt Gik A) 0k o)

WA BILIREE E 2% /NFE—H
— H > 28 4 IR Hp B A 3 T I I s A
RE ZH B 38 5% I FEAOBL - A 2 AK > 3t
I ) AR A T I 22 B O R AR A I R
TH P 5142 4% € Bl TH 7% #5 952,379,000 7T ( —

P4 - #H2,571,0007T) ©

NPT BL (FEA) 0T B AR 5 1R 4R K
At 4 THT A 4 3R 2 BR B AT Ol 1R) 6k A

IRINE -

PR L AT (s 18) 46 A1

i 98 ) . 25% 2 T 19 Bl 3 th
(ZFPUAE : 25%)
R LR N R S
ol s 7 2
FHARL R 7 SR BLIRA Z
Bl s 5 2
R e RRB S M 18 2 B
A8 A 2 R oy 2 B

W6 Jeg 2~ = oA 7 B s M) 2 T B
i 7 AR 22 A S L T LR

BEBIEEERTYE L

A ERIBEMEE (@)

HE-_T-_AFA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) CHARGE (Continued)

attributable to such profits.

The EIT Law also requires withholding tax upon distribution of
profits earned by the PRC entities since 1 January 2008 at 5%. At
the end of the reporting period, deferred taxation of HK$2,379,000
(2024: HK$2,571,000) has been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences

The income tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the
(loss) profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

(Loss) profit before taxation

Income tax expense at the applicable rate
of 25% (2024: 25%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of share of profit of a joint
venture

Deferred tax liabilities resulting from
withholding tax on undistributed profits
of a subsidiary

Deferred tax effect on properties under
development

Others

Income tax (credit) charge

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

S S
2025 2024
BT o BT T
HKS$’000 HK$'000
(91,934) 12,612,129
(22,984) 3,153,032
1,167 21,576
(17,473) (27,127)
9,372 6,338
- (3,158,943)
2,892 (96)
(1,997) 7,262,411
(118) 662
(29,141) 7,257,853
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GZAEMBIREME (@)

HE-_ZT-_AFSA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

11. JB A 11. DIVIDENDS
2025 2024
BT T T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
HRME & P4 Final dividend paid in respect of
ANH=1H IR year ended 30 June 2024 of
B IR oK R R 0.5 Hong Kong cents
g 1B s 0.5l (2023: 0.5 Hong Kong cent) per share
(ZF =4 il oSl 1,189 1,189
HFHEBE _F _H4F Interim dividend paid in respect of
NHAZ=Z+HIEFEE year ended 30 June 2025 of
E R 2 R R 0.5 Hong Kong cents
A 1B s M 0.5 (2024: 0.5 Hong Kong cents) per share
(ZF U4 osl) 1,189 1,189
2,378 2,378
RHEH EREGOERRE TR At the reporting date, the final dividend in respect of 0.5 Hong
N A =1 H R AR R IR B R Kong cents per share totaling HK$1,189,000 (2024: 0.5 Hong Kong
0.5l > A 3 5 %1,189,000 76 ( = & — Iy cents per share totaling HK$1,189,000) for the year ended 30 June
AW HROS Al - A AL i 151,189,000 2025 has been proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to
JG) o MEZEfF B R A B R A AR R & b approval by the shareholders in the annual general meeting.
i oo
12. &% O ) &R 12. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE
AN E A NS BB (s 8 & F) The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share attributable to
ToRR4E LA GRS the owners of the Company is based on the following data:
ZRHAE -y 11 2
2025 2024
BT B For
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FAVERT 5 B B R A 2 R (1Y) (Loss) earnings for the purposes of basic
(Ol 48) &L A earnings per share (62,594) 5,353,955

I 4y % H Number of shares
FER A A B ) 2 Weighted average number of ordinary
& e ¥ 8 E shares for the purpose of basic earnings
per share 237,703,681 237,703,681
B A TR AR BE A T E O B AT 8 For both years, no diluted earnings per share is (loss) presented as
i > WO A 2 5 B R (s 4E) B - there are no potential ordinary shares in issue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24 B #EBR 1E B 5 ()

BEZT-_AFA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

iR W%
3 &3 HE O BRI aH
Leasehold Office
land and Motor equipment
building vehicles and others Total
BHT T BWT T EWT T EWT T
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
JA COST
RZFZ=FtH—H At 1 July 2023 1,538 5,432 3,025 9,995
SR Exchange realignment 16 66 31 113
RE Additions - 577 30 607
& Disposals = = (132) (132)
REZFZMERA=1H At 30 June 2024 1,554 6,075 2,954 10,583
LR Exchange realignment 1 (35) (35) (69)
RE Additions - 308 69 377
ke Disposals - (482) (118) (600)
REFEZHEAA=ZTH At 30 June 2025 1,555 5,866 2,870 10,291
Wi DEPRECIATION
RoF-=4FLtH—H At 1 July 2023 1,163 4,677 2915 8,755
SR Exchange realignment 12 54 31 97
ARAE B Al Provided for the year 74 294 57 425
T B AR Eliminated on disposals = - (125) (125)
REZFZZWERSA=1H At 30 June 2024 1,249 5,025 2,878 9,152
SR Exchange realignment 5 (18) (56) (69)
ARAE B A Provided for the year 73 271 4 387
A B R Eliminated on disposals = (433) (109) (542)
REZZHEANAZTH At 30 June 2025 1,327 4,845 2,756 8,928
K Wi i CARRYING AMOUNTS
REBZHEANAZTH At 30 June 2025 228 1,021 114 1,363
REZFZNFEAA=TH At 30 June 2024 305 1,050 76 1,431

A 45 [ FH BT b R M T 2 R TR A £
B R o B EEREANER -
b R MR o 2 B AT TSR AP TE - MOE
WD B - M A o

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land and building
comprises a property situated in the PRC. As the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire property is classified as property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FE NI ARIEM G (m)
HE-_ZT-_AFSA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

13. W3~ IO ikt (o) 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
TE % 6 B H AL SH R BREE > Bk The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
B A TE B R T S AR R at the following rates per annum after taking into account of their

estimated residual values:

FHE + b R T A FH B K 20 4F: Leasehold land and building Over shorter of lease term and
(DA 5 3 B 1E) 20 years
H i 15% %.20% Motor vehicles 15% to 20%
W2 5 B I HA 10% % 33.3% Office equipment and others 10% to 33.3%
14. 5 JH B 2 14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET
iI§EL7ES
Leased property
BT T
HK$°000
R THAEANAZTH As at 30 June 2025
R T (B Carrying amount 3,190
I UEANH =T H As at 30 June 2024
R T {H Carrying amount 5,409
BREZZ_HAEANA ST HILERE For the year ended 30 June 2025
A Depreciation charge 2,219
BEZEZMEANH=THIEFE For the year ended 30 June 2024
I Depreciation charge 2,242

BRE_Z_H4E HEZZDNE

AH=Z1H ANH=1H

Ak 4 B R

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2025 30 June 2024

BT BT

HKS$’000 HK$°000

EMAEER Expenses relating to short-term leases 396 329

B B4 00t AR () Total cash outflow for leases (note) 2,851 2,613

WEMAEEE Additions of right-of-use asset - 6,598
M AT - 4 A FE FHEE B A RN AT R B A & Note: Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease
F| B F A B9S2 AT o w% 4k 4% 4y B ER A R liabilities and short-term leases. These amounts are included in

EMEERERET o financing and operating cash flows respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1 1 HE %8 P a)

T 7 A BE - R B R R A AT B
o HE S A E WA = o AR A
B T A R R LA R 2
AN T AR TR B Ak T R E - 9 R A R R A
Bk A ] fi 89 0 2 G Al A BN &
0 2 7 3 R 58 ) BUAT B AT B E AR

ASE T E AT L A E R E A o
MOECRERECEEANH =T
H o 2 A FH B 1% AL B B o b i %
19 26 ) FHL S AR ) o

AEL 5 e AN TG o A AT B2 5E - BRAH IS
BE AR A g Ay A AR AN HEH
FE AN T AR AR A A EE O o

el P M L N DA AR
At EATE o

B¥EYE

14.

15.

A ERIBEMEE (@)

HE-_T-_AFA=THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (Continued)

For both years, the Group leases office for its operation. Lease
contract is entered into for fixed term of three years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As at
30 June 2025 and 2024, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar
to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease
expense disclosed in this note.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.

Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The above item of right-of-use asset is depreciated over its lease
periods on a straight-line basis.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BT T
HK$ 000

AT

KoB= =LA —H
B
DN R T

SRR A

B EDAEANA=Z1H
A
KNAPAE D R 18 R R

40 o
RERHAEAA=ZTH

7 B2 [ DA AR 8 B A T R < i A
R E A EZ BCEY S W A
FEM AN R - A REY)
SEFIOLIA A

MEF_HERFWEANA=T
Ho> AEMBZEYE (BFLEE  HER
AL AR B A ML D) 2 NP E TR R
SHLAS £ [ SIf S0 ) 2R 2 B S A SR A
B %% B g 2 M E A
HA &8 &% O A B [ 5 00 ) 360
b E 2 B8 -

FAIR VALUE
At 1 July 2023 1,840,814
Additions 2,545
Decrease in fair value recognised in

profit or loss (23,927)
Exchange realignment 18,795
At 30 June 2024 1,838,227
Additions 1,060
Decrease in fair value recognised in

profit or loss (114,974)
Exchange realignment 715
At 30 June 2025 1,725,028

The investment properties of the Group held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model for both years. All the investment
properties are situated in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties (including
residential, commercial and carparks portions and office units)
as at 30 June 2025 and 2024 has been arrived at on the basis of
valuations carried out by independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group with appropriate qualification and
recent experience in the valuations of similar properties in the
relevant locations.
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5 B85 BR TE B EE )

HE-_ZT-_AFSA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

15.

BEWE )

TG T 57 48 B 3 ek 2 T 35 2 Al it
LY w5 8 45 22 5 i A o T R R R IR A
WA BRESEAEYEME WM
S N &AL 3 Y 2 > T TR 18 B I
AAE R A o EAG S BN WD
7 %114,974,000 70 ( & TP 4R
23,927,0007C) B A 18 25 A ffE 78 o

WA EAACAGE LT > B R s Al b 5
WD K LA T Al &
W #362,047,000 JC ( - F P AR i M
396,543,000 7T ) K #k #1,071,408,000 7T ( —
TP AE i H01,146,838,000 7€) B
NI 1§ -3 1INk 5 I < g N o = 3
AR R 0 Al 51T B BT A & o B
FEEHERANEARL - WEHKE
B WE T W U E AN b R
FH4.50% 2 525% ( = & — U 4F : 450% %
525%) > 2%~ F R IS A B 5 A T
R oo BN E AL bR e E A TE
W RZ IR o REAT 2R T A5
o = WO 3 IR A Tl A TG £
HEEEHS T TFRARKIBOTES
Tl ok N R 21370 (T U AF - AT
ok N R ¥158 0 £ 5T 5 ok A R #0248
JC) o R B — M E KR R A B A i A
JEE o WAL T B OnH & g R A
SEEEN s R Z IR -

R ANE T > R R A AR
A6 5t 5 B8 K AR 2 #5404 Al AR 25 iR
7 %199,792,000 76 ( & TP 4R
199,632,000 7C ) % #s 91,781,000 7€ ( — &
TP AE ks H95.214,000 98 ) 1Y R W]
2T R o B A8 T O H A R
T i B 0 Ay 5T 8 BELAE B T oK B
8 o {f A 5= B 35 S AT 8 &6 4 17 35 B 5l
BT K B EAE > TI 4 B4R B R E B
5ot N R 180,000 7t F A B ot A R ¥
218,000 7T ( — & P 4F : & o N R
168,000 7T & 43 ¥ o0 A\ R %#220,00000) & B
05 K N R 523,000 70 A5 7 ok AR
58,000 7C ( & “PU4E ATk AR
20,000 7C =& & 5 ok A R 61,000 7C) 1
Al L W T 5 BT 8 B AR o 3 Al R
M T E RGN A FEYE M &
Z IR e

A AF PR RO A (E 7 i AR AR ) o Y
fili w4 3E 0 S (E S > M) 36 R e i I I A
A3 By H B i

A EEMBEYEMED TNV EFR
AR o RWEAE N - 5 = AR
LEVNE'S ¥
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The valuations were arrived at with adoption of the direct
comparison approach by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the market and where appropriate,
adopted the income capitalisation approach by capitalising the
rental income of the properties derived from the existing tenancies
with due allowance for the reversionary income potential of the
properties. The revaluations gave rise to a decrease in fair value
of HK$114,974,000 (2024: HK$23,927,000) which has been
recognised in profit or loss.

The key unobservable inputs used in valuing commercial
portion in Beijing and office units in Shanghai amounting to
HK$362,047,000 (2024: HK$396,543,000) and HK$1,071,408,000
(2024: HK$1,146,838,000) respectively under income capitalisation
approach were the capitalisation rates used and estimated market
unit rents of individual units. The capitalisation rates used, taking
into account of the capitalisation of rental income potential, nature
of the property, prevailing market condition, ranging from 4.50%to
5.25% (2024: 4.50% to 5.25%) represents significant unobservable
input. An increase in the capitalisation rates used would result in a
decrease in fair value and vice versa. Estimated market unit rents
of individual units used, which derived from the market rentals of
comparable properties ranging from RMB139/sq.m. to RMB213/sq.
m. (2024: RMB158/sq.m. to RMB248/sq.m.) per month represents
another significant unobservable input. An increase in the estimated
market unit rent would result in an increase in fair value and vice
versa.

The key unobservable input used in valuing carparks and residential
portion in Beijing, amounting to HK$199,792,000 (2024:
HK$199,632,000) and HK$91,781,000 (2024: HK $95,214,000)
respectively under direct comparison approach was the estimated
market unit rate or sale rate/sq.m. with adjustment on other factors,
such as condition and location. Estimated market unit rate or
sale rate/sq.m. of carparks and residential portions used, which
derived from the markets unit sales comparables ranging from
RMB180,000/unit to RMB218,000/unit (2024: RMB168,000/unit
to RMB220,000/unit) and RMB23,000/sq.m. to RMB58,000/sq.
m. (2024: RMB20,000/sq.m. to RMB61,000/sq.m.) respectively,
represents the significant unobservable input. An increase in the
estimated market unit rate or sale rate/sq.m. used would result in an
increase in fair value and vice versa.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The valuations of the Group’s investment properties are classified as

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or
out of Level 3 during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. SBAEEHER

A ERIBEMEE (@)

(ZE_T-_AFNA=THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

R AR ZE UL
2025 A2
V.3 T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
WERA > kLT Cost of investment, unlisted 74,386 74,386
Wiz i 4% a5 ) B et A 1 o 88 Share of post-acquisition profits and
reserves (74,386) 12,678,203 *
W AR EEGEBEMNASE  Less: Deemed distribution from joint
- (12,752,589)
HEAERR Interest in a joint venture - -
& SR AL S HEE S (2 & Amount included the fair value gain in respect of the Group Allocated

7 VLM RSB 17 0H) B9 S fE WA o SR T
g3 e -k M i 08 57 B 79 AR R B (8 i i 2
(FF YL RE B84 30) > 3l DA 25 40 WL 89 7
Ao BLAE AL -

Wi

VRN I 2 8 A S A RS A (TN ) J o Ap
BRAEMAE S WhALNF MEREE - A%
AR BB A SR ATES0% 55 S AE - SR STHE R A
5 T AR 2 A I 3 1) 5 € Ll i g o

MR A AR AR AR B BRI G O A RS
(T & 20 Ak 1) b0 3 0 B HE A 45 sl 42 1h 1
P 2w o WP R T AT RN o
MERER S I REZERFC R T T /NER
T TR MR

TER AT > A5 F M1 AN R 142,840,000
I AE 2 4 R o A6 I R RE RE 25 (1980% o
MRPE T T A PRk R > Y EE 2 G A A
58 5 A B 21,000,000 G > H o A 4 ) K A
B R E R 10,290,000 6 K& A R
10,710,000 7C - T A< £ [ K& & & %% 1 0 Bl 76 A
YIHE 2 B HEHE 25 49% B 51% o A 48 [ BH AN B A
#A N R ¥532,550,000 76 B 9 5 5E £ A8 48 9 1)
Y AE 1 #GK -

BEAh - T — TR PR R T R SRR A Y2
T A oI U I A BN — R TR
JE T AT R A LR > AR S B A 4 T I 2 i
HERE £ 2 80% - Bl JI| e fy ol A0 AH — 5 -

Land (as defined in note 17) shared by the Group. The fair value of
the Group Allocated Land is determined based on residual method
as detailed in note 4 and is distributed to the Group through deemed
distribution.

Note:

Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”) was a sino-
foreign equity joint venture company and indirectly held by the Company.
The Group was able to exercise 50% voting power in the joint venture, which
was determined by the proportion of the Group’s representatives in the board
of directors of Zhen Wah.

The Group had lodged petitions for international arbitrations in respect of
the dispute with the Chinese joint venture partner (the “JV Partner”) as
to the percentages of equity interest held in Zhen Wah in prior years. Two
arbitral proceedings were heard and two arbitral awards were made by China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission in 2008 and
2010.

Before the arbitrations, the Group injected RMB42,840,000 as investment
cost to Zhen Wah, representing 80% of equity interests in Zhen Wah.
Pursuant to the arbitral award made in 2008, the registered capital of Zhen
Wah was confirmed to be RMB21,000,000, of which RMB10,290,000
and RMB10,710,000 were contributed by the Group and the JV Partner,
respectively, and that the equity interests of Zhen Wah were held by the
Group and the JV Partner as to 49% and 51%, respectively. The additional
capital contribution of RMB32,550,000 by the Group was considered as
advances to Zhen Wah by the Group.

Also, the arbitral award made in 2010 supported the distribution of profit
arising from relevant income generated from a piece of land held by Zhen
Wabh located in Tung Kok Tau, Shenzhen, the PRC before re-development,
of which the Group should be entitled to a share of 80% in line with share of
total capital contributed to Zhen Wah.
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EEMBREME (@)

HE-_ZT-_AFSA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

SBAEER ) 16.

16.
Mrat : (#)

BE A B YT A BT E A= 1 B 0 B A i HE 25 9k R
BRI G 49% N FERE RS ) o i FHRB A
RERTIRR R G E BN A& WE
EORTHAENA=ZTH > H AN L
31% 4 35k 110,368,000 70 ( & P 4E ¢ ik
10,368,000 7T ) A 45 [#13lf K T DATERR ©

PR E O =% —WE—A A H &
o ARAE B AR - DA BRI 2
A1 A Ik ] R 0 A R 2R - I 2E 1Y
BN - PRI HRBEBYIEL
AL G B EL DR ER S SS
BB AR -

BB RER-FMEAASHBA
LY AR

R e XA

P 3 b ik

Name of joint venture Place of establishment

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

The distribution of profit arising from relevant income was accounted
for under the equity method based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in
Zhen Wah. The additional share of 31% up to 30 June 2025 which has
not been recognised by the Group amounted to HK$10,368,000 (2024:
HK$10,368,000), as the Directors consider the result of the arbitration is
subject to the agreement of the JV Partner.

The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014. Based on
the PRC laws and regulations and the related interpretations by an external
PRC legal counsel engaged by the Group, the legal identity of Zhen Wah
still exists. Accordingly, the Directors continue to account for Zhen Wah as
a joint venture of the Group using the equity method of accounting in these
consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the joint venture as at 30 June 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

Yil 3
Zhen Wah

H
PRC

AR A o SV 5 iR AR T S v S RO
a5 i B A AR T A SR BB R
ZF

7 4 1 5 A HE 4k FEEH
The Group’s
equity interest Principal activity
49% KL E
49% Operation ceased

Summarised financial information prepared in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards in respect of the Group’s joint
venture which is accounted for using the equity method is set out
below:

R A TR PR

2025 2024

B W T 7B MFor

HKS$°000 HKS$°000

I Ui B Non-current assets 20,370 20,353

it Current assets 34,009 35,876
8 A Current liabilities (76,886) (76,583)
(22,507) (20,354)
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16. HHEMEEHR )

bt EE R AREBEAFWT

HekBE&%HE

A

AAETE (i 1) it A

A4 BE A AT (32 H) A

AAEFE AT (S2H) A
B

At (R 18) s Al E A% R

FLE A
FE ST
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24 B #EBR 1E B 5 ()

BEZT-_AFA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

16. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the followings:

b St XS —FE U4

2025 2024

#W T
HKS$’000

BT T
HK3$°000
Cash and cash equivalents

33,142 35,074

ZR A ZER YA

AH=Z1TH NH=TH

IR 4E & NIy 5

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2025 30 June 2024

BT W T

HKS$’000 HK3$°000

Revenue - -

(Loss) profit for the year (2,137) 25,787,292
Other comprehensive (expense) income

for the year 222) 763
Total comprehensive (expense) income

for the year 2,359) 25,788,055

The above (loss) profit for the year includes the following:

ZR A
AH=1H
Ak 4

B Sy 111
~H=1H
1A B
Year ended
30 June 2024
BT T
HK3$°000

Year ended
30 June 2025
BT T
HKS$’000

Interest income 41 42

Interest expense - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A B 7% BR 18 B 58X (am)

HE-_ZT-_AFSA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

16.

16. FBEFEHER @)

] B b 2t B 5 R B R AR S B R
T A il 5 09 5 7 A SE AR RO R ThT (L -

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

ZR A —F P4
2025 2024
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
BEAEE AN Net liabilities of joint venture (22,507) (20,354)
AL G A SERE AR Y Proportion of the Group’s ownership
B interest in a joint venture 49% 49%
(11,028) (9,973)
A 45 ] R AR YE 0 s 48 o B Share of losses not taken up by the Group 11,028 9,973
REEGE A ERERN Carrying amount of the Group’s interest
M T in a joint venture - -
17. #RMY R 17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

A 45 [ 19 5% e b ) S A A0 R B TR IR
A B AT — W bR b e T RE - bt
MR —FFNENA RS &
R704F (TEMAR L) -

A4 R B E OB R ) AT T
fili > 3lf DA B AR BEL AT 5 BE O (E WY P IR
o MEBIFETI S B WL G ERK
S At BT R AR AT B il B T 7

112

The properties under development of the Group represent the
land-use-rights for a piece of land situated near Tung Kok Tau
in Shenzhen, the PRC, with a land-use-rights of up to 70 years
commencing on 5 June 2008 (the “Group Allocated Land”).

The management of the Group had carried out assessment on the
properties under development based on the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The net realisable value was determined with
reference to the valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer.
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A ERIBEMEE (@)

BEZT-_AFA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

18. B 5 B il J o Mk sk B TEUA 18. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
PREPAYMENTS
U5 Be L fib 1 W MG 5k Be A 3k (i)  Trade and other receivables and prepayments
ZR AR Z R AR
2025 AL
.3 T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
& o E I 3¢ Trade receivables 4,139 4,771
WS B R Less: Allowance for credit losses (2,663) (2,124)
1,476 2,647
Ve Q& T L NG Deposits and amounts due from
related companies 778 696
JRE A S Interest receivables 1,639 2,316
HoAtE U AR~ A7 Other receivables, deposits and
TE £ 3K prepayments 9,371 9,917
13,264 15,576

1 5% 6 W 8 L 2 A
HLSE AR BB ih 7 8 S 4
fi = 2ol B kb B M IR SR
B f B T 922 51 e
B -

AL AT 2 PG &1 530
H (2% U4E : 30H) o

PERW A URMERE H WA
e T 2 5] F 5 IR RO
4,139,000 JC ( — & — 10 4F ¢ @k #
4,771,000 7C ) > T 41K 15 & K5 18
2,663,000 76 ( — & PO 4F s B
2,124,0007C) Z {FAFEIREE o HT i T

Trade receivables represent operating lease receivables from
tenants which are payable on presentation of invoices. The
collection is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk
associated with these receivables.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days (2024:
30 days) for tenants.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables of
HK$4,139,000 (2024: HK$4,771,000) net of allowance
for credit losses of HK$2,663,000 (2024: HK $2,124,000)
presented based on the date of rendering services at the end
of the reporting period:

OHZE30H K 0-30 days
31HZE60H A 31-60 days
61 HZE90H A 61-90 days

A G W AE 52 AT AT 2 5 R AR
FEAT R - WA AR E S E
HHERMEEEFFEHE - KW
s 2 A5 BRI E A B -

R R4 ey 1112
2025 2024

BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
1,316 2,244

93 361

67 4

1,476 2,647

Before accepting any new customer, the Group carries out
assessment on the creditability of the new customer and
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly.
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18. By B il M BB 3k e LA

(#4)

@

(i)

(iii)

@iv)

114

U5 B I A MW MRk B T K ()

M oEREANA=ZTH A
5 ME i BR AKCRE E (U
#616,000 JC ( — & — U 4F ¢ K
1,122,000 70 ) 2 {5 % & > 3% ok B iR
WHEAC®ERY - S@iioo s L
WoELL SR > ANMEEERUAEKR
AL B &R A el > BRIk
AU 4 o A5 B L S
G B T A AT T A

BEF HFE KR _F UEARNA
= HIEERE - &5 K H i R R
R A5 15 e 48 BT A I A 80 B R
55291H o

¢ JBe JBe 3 Xk

%K AT -
EREE S E T P N

JEAE Z R

WE_F _AFER_F_MEANA
= H AR o IR RO R
15 B0 M5 45 BT il 155 914 B 15 29

<

T

v

BT 2 W 42K

Ji ) 3R A = A B SR AT S W AF
R AE1.00% £ 1.90% (. F — PO 4E
1.95% %2.90%) 2 54 B R51HE -

BE TR TR R & TR
H="4 H1EF 5 > 8847 € 84730
{5 B8 1 15 FR A0 5 A B R B R 4R 29
I o

BATHIOE KA &

WRITH G AR SR AEREEZ
B4 KRR E A =M A Dk =1/
H AR IR & 2 $R17T 773K - $RATAS
% $0.05% F4.29% ( — & — U 4 :
0.20% %0.88%) < T H4FE B RGE -

BEZZ - HFE R FWAENA
=T HIEFE > S|ITHEBRNEEE
5 R AG A 0 B R A5 290H o

18. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

@

(i)

(i)

@iv)

Trade and other receivables and prepayments (Continued)

As at 30 June 2025, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$616,000 (2024: HK$1,122,000) which are past due at
the reporting date. No balance has been past due 90 days or
more and is not considered as in default as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are
still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Details of credit loss assessment of the trade and other
receivables for the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024 are
set out in note 29.

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder

The amount is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Details of credit loss assessment of the amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder for the years ended 30 June 2025
and 2024 are set out in note 29.

Fixed bank deposits

Fixed bank deposits with original maturity of more than three
months carry interest at market rates ranging from 1.00% to
1.90% (2024: 1.95% to 2.90%) per annum.

Details of credit loss assessment of the fixed bank deposits
for the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024 are set out in note
29.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
deposits with banks which are not restricted in use with the
original maturity of three months or less. Bank balances carry
interest at market rates ranging from 0.05% to 4.29% (2024:
0.20% to 0.88%) per annum.

Details of credit loss assessment of the bank balances for the
years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024 are set out in note 29.
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19. B 55 B JCfil HE A Mk 5k

Mo FE HEASNA=ZTH > 5 &kHAb
JRE A R K A B 61 3 U 15 1,836,000 G (&
TUOAE 1,114,000 0) 2 E 5 HE AR
Ao WA EMMIAR > DLEE A M L
23R 5 REAT IR Z BRI AT an F

0H E60H N 0-60 days
61 H 90 H 4 61-90 days
90 H A | Over 90 days

HoAb BEAT IR 3k B A IFE W S &SR
TH #k 110,641,000 75 ( % T POAR -k
9,069,000 7 ) > T Ui FK TH # 4,927,000 7T
(T F T PU4E - #EH4,921,0007T) - Hoth
A7 B 3K 156,074,000 7T (=& —PU4F ¢
55,795,000 G ) K 1) Hif FL 5 B2 Ak 4 28 A AE
B JRE AF 3K T s 51,738,000 7 ( — % I
A H51,834,0000T) ©
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24 B #EBR 1E B 5 ()

BEZT-_AFA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at 30 June 2025, the balance of trade and other payables included
trade payables of HK$1,836,000 (2024: HK$1,114,000). The
following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

ZRIHAF e It S
2025 2024
BT BT T
HK$°000 HKS$'000
741 755

388 93

707 266

1,836 1,114

The other payables mainly include rental deposits received of
HK$10,641,000 (2024: HK$9,069,000), receipt in advance
of HK$4,927,000 (2024: HK$4,921,000), other tax payable
of HK$6,074,000 (2024: HK$5,795,000) and provision of
compensation payable to an ex-tenant for its relocation amounted to
HK$51,738,000 (2024: HK$51,834,000).
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20. AL A

HEH K

IR — AN R
7 38— A {EL AN A T 4 Y
1R A

W A B BRI I
T A R E A
HIH

FUAE IF L By B T R
+ A H R B &5 2 0R

AL B R 2 R T Y 3 R AR
FI R F597% (& U4 : 597%) ©

21, AR

A B s W 1.00 7T 2 38 4 B By

e
RZEZ=FEH—H
ZEWMENRNA=TH K
ZZ-HAEANAZ4H

B BT A -
ROZE=4LH R -
SECWERASER
SRTHAEAA N

116W

20. LEASE LIABILITIES

R hAE
2025

e gy 11 4 2
2024

W IEF T
HK$°000

W T
HK$000

Lease liabilities payable:

Within one year 2,325 2,194
Within a period of more than one year but
not exceeding two years 1,128 3,453
3,453 5,647
Less: Amount due for settlement with
twelve months shown under
current liabilities (2,325) (2,194)
Amount due for settlement after twelve
months shown under non-current
liabilities 1,128 3,453

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease
liabilities is 5.97% (2024: 5.97%).

21. SHARE CAPITAL

Jbe £ ¥ H

Number of shares

M

Amount

BT T
HKS$°000

Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each

Authorised:
At 1 July 2023,
30 June 2024 and
30 June 2025

300,000,000 300,000

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 July 2023,
30 June 2024 and
30 June 2025

237,703,681 237,704
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9B SiE BB £ 4%

DL B A 4F B %M T 9545 39 1 A 4 I
82 WA B U A G AT B

e — At 1 July 2023
tH—H

S, 5 Exchange realignment

=N (FEA) (Credit) charge to
S profit or loss

T E AR At 30 June 2024
NH=TH

S, 5 Exchange realignment

R NFEA Credit to profit or loss

R IAAR At 30 June 2025
AH=ZTH

RoEAENA=Z+TH AEEHTH
1K 5 o 2l 8 A i & 6 A B G 4B 5
#e 1320,870,000 70 ( - F DU 4E : ik s
285,756,000 7C ) ° A A fig #E & A 2K i F
Wi MORA IR EBLEE E o KR
Bl TE 5 18 A §E 49 35 520,655,000 7T (.
T PUAE - R 15497,00000) B ESHR >
i 48 AT A B s 18 8 AR A R B £ S AR N
G B R U A o AR 4R L 0 BEAG
AT AELR RILEAGMMRES
T o A s 18 AT 4R R0 A 0 o

22.
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BEZT-_AFA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group and
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods
are as follows:

e 1 ) 2 )

A 2> Bl F) M
Undistributed
earnings of a
PRC subsidiary

g PR
Properties
under

ok

BYEY R

Investment
properties
BN T
HKS$°000

Total
T T
HK$°000

development
T T
HK$°000

BT T
HK$'000

2,641 231,388 - 234,029
26 2,372 6,844 9,242
(96) (8,793) 7,262,411 7,253,522
2,571 224,967 7,269,255 7,496,793
1 (26) 5,805 5,780
(193) (30,942) (1,998) (33,133)
2,379 193,999 7,273,062 7,469,440

At 30 June 2025, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$320,870,000 (2024: HK $285,756,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately HK$20,655,000
(2024: HK$15,497,000) that can be used to offset against taxable
profits up to 5 years from the year in which the loss is incurred,
based on management’s assessment, the amount is immaterial and
therefore the expiry dates are not disclosed. Other losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.
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23.

9 E i ) o A A B R

TRV AEEMME T HEEAMZ
2 UEBHEREREEY MER
W) BT A B AR R0 & R A AR AR
o Bl U R 2 B L I B T E

23.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.
A B B AL bk ]
Dividend Lease

payable liabilities Total

BT EWTE  EET

HK3$°000 HKS$°000 HK3$°000
HoE=FEH—H At July 2023 - (1,134) (1,134)
. e 5 0 B New lease recognised = (6,598) (6,598)

fE 3= & A Repayment of lease liabilities — 2,085 2,085

A A B Interest paid = 199 199
SR/ 5 Dividends declared (2,378) = (2,378)
NSE- 9 Interest expense — (199) (199)

BB (M7 451176)  Dividends paid (note 11) 2,378 = 2,378
MTE T EN A =T H At 30 June 2024 - (5,647) (5,647)

fE 3% fH & A & Repayment of lease liabilities - 2,194 2,194

B A FLE Interest paid - 261 261
EACR) i Dividends declared (2,378) = (2,378)
Pk 3z Interest expense = (261) (261)

E AT (B3 45115H)  Dividends paid (note 11) 2,378 = 2,378
ROROHAENAZEH At30 June 2025 - (3:453) (3.453)

24.

udd JBEHE it B B DA JBe B 2y RE g 2 A%
X

REF_—F+ZH+EH > BRRA
AN S KN F R L RIY
S HER A — TR R B ([ =% =
—AETE ) o EEER —F =&+
THARNHER - R T R
ZHWMBHMBES - EERGEHKSH
HCGERA T -

IISX

24,

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On 17 December 2021, an ordinary resolution was passed by
the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
approving the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2021
Scheme”) which will expire on 16 December 2031. The 2021
Scheme was adopted for the purpose of providing incentives to
Directors, employees and Eligible Participants (defined herein
below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

wd JBe B st B DA I By Ky Bk BE 2 A
X (4)

R —F = —AERHE 2Rk EHEEA
B AR R E S (A
THERATER XA RS T BLES)
EHGEMEMHER AR CH AL
AL B 2 R BA 2N R A R EE Ik
A (CAnE ) R R R A SR AR A
B J > W B B W) (A ) Z AR B
(MMM S B ) 2 e e ([
JBeHE L) -

Ry =% = — 5t E > ]
oo HR 45 5% wh E 2 R 1 E 2 A B
2 E R R AR N F 2
Bty (B 1) > 4 BB A8 A AR LR
ZHEEE R F RO RS
R AR R B AR S H) R
Wi 22 T 4 H 348 2% T e 2 By i i A
(i) IR 7€ B H2 4 HE AR TR R R HE A i
FAR 22 S B B 32 Ir A H A8 3R i ki
By 7 Bl i -

R 48 58 % R 51 1) MY BB A% 2 A R R R
MEAT 4% AT LB AT 2 IOy AU 2 R AT
AR S ) 7 A B R IR T B BR A E B
EEBATRAZ10% - Wi T~ — 45
B> 3%10% 23,770,368 B B 3 > T R
AHEE AW HARAE A A A © AT IR A
10% o R4 =% = —F 5 H UKW KA
o8 AT SR A B I B A R R 2
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)T O EAARATHZ A M ARAT
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The Board might at its discretion grant options (the “Options™)
under the 2021 Scheme to any Director, proposed Director (whether
Executive or Non-executive and whether independent or not),
employee of the Group or an affiliate or the holding company of
the Company (if applicable) whom the Board in its sole discretion
considers will contribute or has contributed to any member of the
Group or an affiliate or the holding company of the Company (if
applicable) (collectively the “Eligible Participants”).

Under the 2021 Scheme, the Board may grant share options to the
Eligible Participants at the discretion of the Board according to the
terms thereof, to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
at a price per Share not less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
on the date of grant of the relevant Option, which must be a trading
day; or (ii) the average of the closing price of a Share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option
under the 2021 Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Options to be granted under the share option schemes
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of the adoption of the relevant share option
scheme. Under the 2021 Scheme, such 10% represents 23,770,368
Shares, which continue to represent 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this report. The maximum number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2021 Scheme and
any other schemes (if any) involving the issue or grant of options or
similar rights over Shares or other securities by the Company, must
not, in aggregate, exceed 30 per cent of the Shares in issue from
time to time.

No Option granted under the 2021 Scheme may be granted to any
Eligible Participants which if exercised in full would result in
the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the Options already granted or to be granted to such Eligible
Participant under the 2021 Scheme (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding Options), respectively, in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of such new
grant. Any grant of further Options above this limit shall be subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at general
meeting, with such Eligible Participant and its close associates (or
his associates if the Eligible Participant is a connected person) for
the 2021 Scheme abstaining from voting.
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24,

25.

e JBE BE 3 B DA Ik Oy A SR BE 2 A
X (4)

] AT A R T R M R U ] % S
ZHRR AR A RS2 R0
Ao IR T AR CHE B ZEAY AT R ZA) B R
AH28 H MM o R AMRIE —F — —
wt B 1 A SR B HE B A W 8 2R S A AT AT
I o AN F I G IR AT T R
M T AR A5 {1 AR DL K% % RO B i R B
R o AR N F g T AE 2 R A R E
2R BRI A B A AT
o A7 ) I HE T A A R IS M 1YY o i A0 BRE
B/ SR R BUMH BE -

RBE_F_RER T NENH=
T H IR B %
7~ 2~ WORAT B AT SR A R
JBe HE

RBEAMELH
7 4 1 2y th L

oW AR R 4 i R B I e TR 8 AL R 4
YR E 2 B ERA ST E S
BB A EHEZ =8 - ME_F
ZHAENAZTHIEFEER > IR
oAR A A U A £ S 91,526,000 0T (&
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24.

25.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The option period for which the options granted are exercisable,
shall be such period as notified by the Board, save that it shall not
be more than 10 years from the date of grant. The offer of a grant of
share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the
offer. No payment is required by the grantee for acceptance of the
Option offer under the 2021 Scheme. At the time of granting any
Option, the Board may, on a case by case basis and subject to the
provisions of the Listing Rules, make such grant on such terms and
conditions as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion,
including the minimum period of the Options to be held and/or the
performance targets to be achieved before such Options may be
exercised.

During the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024, no option under the
2021 Scheme had been issued, granted, outstanding, exercised or
lapsed.

OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

Contingent rental income was calculated based on the excess of
certain percentage of revenue of the relevant operation of the lessees
who occupied certain of the properties over the fixed portion of the
monthly rentals. Contingent rental income earned during the year
ended 30 June 2025 is HK$1,526,000 (2024: HK$1,781,000).

All of the properties held for rental purposes have committed lessees
for the next one to six years (2024: the next one to five years).

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

St ot [ S —E YA
2025 2024
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
W—FN Within one year 44,563 50,590
NES A In the second year 21,888 22,324
AR AR In the third year 9,534 5,594
A5 I 4R In the fourth year 1,501 2,282
AR AR In the fifth year 575 461
h TR After five years 576 =
78,637 81,251
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25, MEBMERHE w2 25. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

A 2y AL (A

The Group as lessor (Continued)

AR > LU EE R EAE

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were rented
out under operating leases:

e s X8
2025

P
2024
0T
HK$°000

YT
HK$°000

wEYE Investment properties 1,122,328 1,259,157

26. 3B 4k Al

OF) MZZTE+—A— Al A%k @)

26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated a defined

B2 TR B A T AR BB
SE OB PR AR A B (15 52 ks 08
eut @ 1) o FoE ORI E 2 &
JEE B L2 RE R > S B AR SR T
ZEEE S BRI o A 9 R B
]IS 2 M BRI AR R E iR
PR & - S A 5 B T LB R
FEME B AR A 42 ) H A% 2 it

HoZFZTET A Bl F%
P % 57 R R B o SE REEOR K
FH# 2 B TR A — Rk 2 4 4
Do RE B O A R AR B B
FEE o 5 R B A OOAR R A
T 4w B 1 5 A R RS GE
i o 58 Bl & 2 S % s
HE M 0 B AR 4R 2 K ) B
B oo R mAT e Rt # Gy - =R
FCAR B 2 5l 8 45 B RT B 2 L R AR
H PR o Sl R AT AT ik S 44 T 4 R
ERERAERA S AR -

Hh 5 A OB ARG B K o i 4
51 SO 48 45 7 7 w8 19 48 fR 48 A st
BIMER > ToAS 42 B % 4 L LB
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i B PR A% 1k 57 R R AR S B T
T2 O W A B
TG > wosk BT A A A 4R AR
F e OB ARG B E TR R AR AR T
JE A 3K -
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contribution retirement benefit scheme (“Defined
Contribution Scheme”) for its qualifying Directors and
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Defined
Contribution Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Where there are Directors and employees who leave the
Defined Contribution Scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the amount of the forfeited contributions will
be used to reduce future contributions payable by the Group.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has set up a
MPF Scheme. Members of the Defined Contribution Scheme
were given one-time option to choose to transfer to the
MPF Scheme or remain in the existing scheme. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the
rules. No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years by the employer.

The retirement benefit schemes contributions arising from
the Defined Contribution Scheme and the MPF Scheme
recognised in profit or loss represent contributions payable
to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes.

There are no forfeited contributions in both years which arose
upon employees leaving the Defined Contribution Scheme
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable
by the Group under the Defined Contribution Scheme in the
future years.
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26. BARH RS ) 26.

(&) P B B ) Bk A > o B
& A E R A A AR RE
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)

(b) According to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiary and joint venture are required to
contribute 20% and 9% of the stipulated salary set by the
Beijing and Shenzhen local governments, respectively, to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the retirement benefits of
their employees.

During the year, the retirement benefit schemes contributions
recognised in profit or loss are HK$943,000 (2024: HK$871,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has entered into the following transactions

with related companies:

ZR A e g 1S

2025 2024

BHTIL T T

HKS$’000 HK3$°000

SRR PN Rental income received 960 907
GRS RPN Other income received 450 413
GRS RV ] Interest expenses on lease liabilities 261 199
HE AT A B S Expenses relating to short-term leases 206 206
RS Management fee expenses 3,266 2,231
EL AT 1) s 2 Consultancy service fees paid 2,200 2,200
[EENRALE Agency fees paid 418 389
2 AT BUE F Administrative expenses paid 1,089 1,007

122

SERCNEFRFEEER | BOEBEARAA



27.

29.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SLAT Il VB 2 B8 B ()

27.

AWM EIREMNGE 2

HE-_T-_AFA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

A B F RN O AR N E AR Other balances with related companies at 30 June 2025 and 2024
NAZ+HZ HAb &R m T are as follows:
2025 2024
BT T T
HKS$°000 HK3$°000
o PR Right-of-use asset 3,190 5,409
HE A A Lease liabilities
— I E) — Non-current 1,128 3,453
— — Current 2,325 2,194
A A L Al 8 SRR 3K 2 A BH Deposits due from related companies
s ) 4 ROR (M aE—) included in other receivables (Note i) 538 538
A3 A At R i B K 2 A W Amounts due from related companies
I8 a8 KK (WAt —) included in other receivables (Note i) 233 157
AR At JE A B 2 KA BB Amounts due to related companies
NEIF/ SN0y included in other payables (Note ii) 2,205 2,721
T 42 B e SRR K (Mt —) Amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder (Note i) 839 838
Mt it Notes:
— RIZFZRAERZEFZNAENA=T i Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand at 30
H oo BRIE 2 ST - B R L R June 2025 and 2024.
(8
= REFZARZFZNEANA=TH ii. Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand at 30

HOE B A AT - % 8 B A f 9 oK B
fit -

A BB R TG B o R AT R

Al -

ARBEBEMAKAFALR 5%
2 B 450 () 3L 25 -

B 7 o B 4 B

A AR Y A B TE 05 0 RS B
4 5 B AF R (O > DLURE QR AS 4R F Y
BT R A S TR A6 2 e s [

=
TR T BN S

A ] 2 A 2R e B % B A
AN E R ON AL HE &R (B4 O B AT
A~ LR B U M) B EL At k) P AL o

O AR BB A o AR B AR B T
ez —s » EHFHELEHE - %
EEERER - RIFKAHEA > EHE
A A B 5 AR SR 2 AR B L e
Sl 775 i IR A B - BEATORT R M LA R B AT
BT > LA KR E A -

28.

June 2025 and 2024.

The related companies are companies controlled by certain
Directors.

The Group’s key management personnel are all Directors, details of
their remuneration are disclosed in note 9(a).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the Directors review annual budgets taking into account
the provision of funding. Based on the operating budgets, the
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital and balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A B 7% BR 18 B 58X (am)

HE-_ZT-_AFSA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

2. £@TH

(W) 4 T3 800

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

()

Categories of financial instruments

S#oEg S F g
2025 AL
V.3 W T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
4 b E Financial assets

DL 6 A S Y A R Financial assets at amortised cost 441,904 426,620
HAhIH H Other item 1,476 2,647

4 ik 18 Financial liabilities
B85 LA Amortised cost 25,484 24,840

(&) 4 ol B 4% 2L B % 8OOSR

AEMPEREM TREAHES &
HC At B WA MR AR~ I BORBOSR ARG
|ATE M - |ATH SR EB £
B 5 R Fo At A B AR 2 iR AR
BHE e ZEEW LR GG
AR BE B RE A o BREZAE &l T AR
B 4 Je B L 4 T A L B (L B
A R JE B )~ fF B JE B A O B R
R o 1 S T B A ] g
%A JE B B BORE o AR 4R B R
PR T B 5w A Ja B > DA £R B IRE AT
200 BR BB R o

A 4 ] 2 % < L By L A B
i A R fgr 77 2K B A AR B2 I AR
W o

17 55 b B
i) EE

A4 EEAT A T UUAN AR
2R oy o A5 B R Z S
JE B o A B H AT A SN I
BEPEUR - R > AL EE
g g E 9 B 2% AR 4 [ ) Ak
W m B o Sl B 7E A W B
[ ESRUE NP
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(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder, fixed bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, and long-term rental deposits
received. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
these kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risks from the prior year.

Market risk
(1) Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group regularly
monitors the Group’s foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.
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29.

(b)

24 B #EBR 1E B 5 ()

BEZT-_AFA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
(mainly include bank balances and cash) at the
reporting date are as follows:

ZRHAE e Sy 111 K42
2025 2024
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
¥ Assets
fiedics HKS 23,408 38,586
FE& ([£4] United States dollars (“US$”) 5,635 162
i Liabilities
g HKS 7,208 7,198
U 53 b7 Sensitivity analysis
I PN R S The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
G TFH SR IR S% (= F Z Y a 5% (2024: 5%) increase or decrease in RMB against

A 5%) BEAAE [ 2 MUK E o
5% (& T PUAE ¢ 5%) J& T
FA BB R s B L
B T E 22 4 BT B AR B 2 T
Al o BICIRR BE 43 A A AL FE R
B H 2 DL AN 2 B IH
H o olf gk RE R AR B 5% (= F
PO 4 2 5%) 3 A R 2
WO AE B A% o R LRSI R
BB R N R LA B A
B T 238 T 5% ( =% P 4% -
5%) o #% AF BE I B AR i R 4
e fil N B ¥ S A B AN W BT
{E5% (- Z —PU4E @ 5%) > HI
3 AR 4 B A BAR it R HE B
SERR A R TR B &
R 1 B o

g
xE
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HKS
USS$

HKS$ and US$5% (2024: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
which represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currencies denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2024: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in
post-tax profit for the year where RMB strengthen 5%
(2024: 5%) against the relevant currencies. For a 5%
(2024: 5%) weakening of RMB against the relevant
currencies, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax profit for the year and the
balances below would be negative.

ECE R
Effect on profit or loss
e St X 2 “E UL
2025 2024
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK3$°000
(608) 1,177)
@11 ©)
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(Z) 4 ih o B 4% 81 H B B BOSR (41

107 5% b, B (45

G)  EHEE ()

LG RS > BURBE Y B A
fE AQ R [ A A0 MR B > R 2
R BB Sl S AR B 4 TR

Je B o

@)

A A [ T B A T 8 R 2 LR
W [ E R R AT K (R
B 5 26 18GH) JE AN B ) L'
B (M S0 HAN ) -
B R AT A7 K T B R A
K e BRAT &5 B B R S B A
R BT DA SR AT A7 3K B SR AT &%
I o Y N
Koo ASEE B Al 4 A 3K %
WECHK > SR B LR e
A B A 2R Om B B R s IR

2% 6 25 3 i E K A 3R
B o
1 18 48 5 0 0 AL A

RZFEZRHENH=ZTH > AEH
[ 28 5 3 F K /8 JB 47 = AT 1 51 3
b3 =GR ON - 9C 0 o WE D T8y
RS SR 0 2 0 P A L RE R R A Rl

HE IR -

A 45 B 09 A BE By 2 B B I
JBHR G - BB AR SRR > RATIR
e RATE WA SRATH R

R Ty B A A R AK

B 5 AR

w7 SRR R R AEEE
HRE O Z AL/ AL B S AT A B
5 LR A5 B R A B AR A
e o LA PR R TBUBR A i it i 8] 4 30
B o MU F > EHR AL
15 LB B B A o SO > A
A1 ] R 45 J £ 4 e A T 001 AR 4R

WK 8 5 45 R AT WM -

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the relevant years.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits (see note
18(iii) for details) and lease liabilities (see note 20
for details). The interest rate risk of bank deposits
and bank balances are considered insignificant as the
bank deposits are substantially short-term deposits
and fluctuation in interest rate of bank balances is
limited. The Group currently does not have interest
rate hedging policy, however, management monitors
interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 30 June 2025, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amount
due from a non-controlling shareholder, fixed bank deposits,
bank balances and trade and other receivables.

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. In addition, the
Group performed impairment under ECL model on the trade
balances based on provision matrix.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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HE-_T-_AFA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

29. &WTH ) 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(Z) 2/ B 45 P H BE B BOR (4) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
1 548 B 0 o AL VA () Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

B 5 IENIRT (A7)

B 5 MR AR & > A4 E O
JH A 4 B o e B 26 0 BE Y i AL
J7 w18 A0 B (E
Bl - BREA EARMBEESGIF
B R A BE NS o A S R 5
i A T R % 4 TEL B (S B
18 > 3 1% MR 5 A o0 BT o

A 4R T {5 B0 B 2t B AR o o
o BR A B B 4B R U B
Mo s A5 AL > AR 4R B S S AT ] A
R R B b - B 5 Uk
HEBERERE - PHEAFRZS
HFH o

AR N > AR 4 B R ) IR i R A
5 632,000 70 ( & U4
[m] 5 %51,082,000 ) {5 B 48 - |
A A B R R A K DY R
T A A BB A 45 R AR 9% TE 45 B0 4R
A S At B iR SR A B 4R
A -

H A IENIR 3% T FEIR IR R Rk

B At B iR K > JE B RBEBER K
o A B B A Dol (L 9 A B 12
H S SR RS o A< 42 3R T
TA) 1A B o A B AR A A A
w8 LA S B B R A BT R
VAT RS 4= W B (5 B RG 1R -

RSB TG HEZR > Hib
JRE Wi B 2 B I 2 IS B RO K 15 &
BT R o Ut > R A
Bl R AE K > ERBE AT A
FEERERKES - PRERE_F N
EARAZTHIEEE REFRRS
A ZE IO RRA B TR A S
2,153,000 7C > 7% K JE AR Ay O 8 AR
fFEWMHE -
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Trade receivables (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances or credit impaired, the Group determines the ECL
on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by
ageing analysis.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is in the PRC. Other than concentration of credit risk
on liquid funds and by geographical location, the Group does
not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spreading across diverse counterparties.

During the years, the Group recognised HK$632,000
(2024: HK$1,082,000) allowance of credit losses on trade
receivables. No allowance of credit losses was provided on
other receivables for both years based on the ECL assessment
as the amount is considered insignificant. Details of the
disclosures are set out below in this note.

Other receivables/Amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder

For other receivables, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL. The Group applies internal credit risk management
to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL.

The credit risk on other receivables and amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder is limited considering the credit
quality of the counterparties. Therefore, no allowance of
credit losses is made on these balances due to ECL being
immaterial. During the year ended 30 June 2024, the Group
recognised HK$2,153,000 allowance of credit losses on
amount due from a joint venture, which was considered to be
credit-impaired.
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29, &R H )

(Z) 4 ih ) B 4% 81 H B B BOSR (47

128

17 0, B A W AL A ()
RIT17 80 RITA7 R

A 4 [ 1A SR AT S A K SRAT G B
{5 SR B A IR &R 5 8 F 5
ooy A8 1B R A B AR Y E S R AR
BRRZRITUREERFZ PH
B A RAT -

BE_F_AFR_F_WFEANA
=+ HIEFE > BEREENE S
s 15 7P il SR AT S 3 A7 KRN SRAT A BR
AR S R o T5 R R R
WA AT o

2445 B 515 5 L 55 40 1
TR UK

W St i B0 Sl R BAH
Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets and other item
B Rk ZHBFMENRRE LR a0 EHERERER- 12f8 A BB S R
e
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
ERAH B AR EARM A 2 7R EHERERER- 12f8 A B S R
HEFEAE UGS EfFEHE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
settle in full not credit-impaired
figt AR A AT R DA EMERERER- EHENERER-
RERREKEEM EfFEHE Bl ERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since ~ Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
initial recognition through information developed not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
internally or external resources
L FRERNEECREGHRE AMENRERER- EHENERER-
fFEHE fFEHE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired
s ARERNEH AT KEHRSRAR -  MEZHUR LT
74 48 S T
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe  Amount s written off Amount is written off

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Bank deposits/bank balances

The credit risks on Group’s fixed bank deposits and bank
balances are limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.

During the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024, no allowance
of credit losses on fixed bank deposits and bank balances
is provided based on the ECL assessment as the amount is
considered insignificant.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic

prospect of recovery

SERCNEFRFEEER | BOEBEARAA
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29, &R H ) 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
() 4w be 45 BIL H BE B WK (41) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
1 b, B3 0 WAL A (AT Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
T R AN 4 H AT R B The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
M B G E M AR EETRZE Group’s financial assets and other item, which are subject to
B R ECL assessment:
A P 124 H e 21500
e fFRs  AREH I e A 4
External Internal Gross
credit credit carrying
rating rating 12m or Lifetime ECL amount
YT
HKS$’000
CR AR
2025
35 B S A - 0 VA 5
Financial assets at amortised cost
oAt RESUIR K 186) AwEm AREER 124/ A S5 F s 1R
Other receivables 18(i)) N/A Low risk 12m ECL 2,823
2 P SRR K 186 AEA - REER 128 A U5 B kR
Amount due from 18(ii)) N/A Low risk 12m ECL 839
a non-controlling
shareholder

HCH  SRATEMAAE R 18(iii) Baal £A1 AT 121/ H FEE Bk 1E

SRAT AR K 18(iv)
Fixed bank deposits and 18(iii) & Baal to A1 N/A 12m ECL 438,243
bank balances 18(iv)
HefbEH
Other item
5 M UIR K — 1860 M RER TR B 1R — A R (E
EHE
Trade receivables — 18(i)) N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 1,218
operating leases BAEE BRI SRR G R
Watch list  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 124
Fr5E 2 BT (5 0 1H — A5 R (E
Doubtful Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 134
JEitE 2 TR B 1R — 5 S
Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 2,663
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29, &R H ) 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued)
() 4 ih e Ba 4% P H RS ) W3R (4) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
1 b, B3 0 WAL A (AT Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
HhER T 121 H 54 B8 5
REFR FEs  FHEER AR THT A
External  Internal (€; (N
credit credit carrying
rating rating 12m or Lifetime ECL amount
BT T
HK$°000
e Sa 11
2024
5B G A i O S
Financial assets at amortised cost
HEAERK 16 A@f o RERE 2T E B H — 5 S
Amount due from 16 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 2,153
a joint venture
At R SR R 186  A@A RERE 128 7 T R 1R
Other receivables 18(i) N/A Low risk 12m ECL 3,444
R S 186)  AEA RERE 124 7 S5 s 1R
Amount due from a non- 18(ii)) N/A Low risk 12m ECL 838
controlling shareholder
$RATE BAAE S % 18(iii) Baal £A1 AEH 1218 A B Sk H
SRATHER L 18(iv)
Fixed bank deposits and  /8jij) & Baal to Al N/A 12m ECL 422267
bank balances 18(iv)
HAbEH
Other item
B 7 MUK — 186  AEA RERE T B 1R — (5 B
Trade receivables — 18() N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 2,082
operating leases B BTG REE - 8GR EE
Watch list  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 481
175E ST B 18 — A Bl
Doubtful Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 84
JEi R 2T I R0 1E — £ Bl
Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 2,124
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29. @ H 4 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

() 4w be 45 BIL H BE B WK (41) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
17 5 8 B A A6 VA (A Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

At 5109 48 O 3 2 AR B 55 3 TR M i
FH A 7 1 JRE st 0 ) AL FH
S 5 B JE AT R 2 A B %% B Al
A5 14 T S 0 R R o A
THAENAZTHE AEERKZ S
JRE ek TE 4R it 9 952,663,000 G (-
F TP AR R %2,124,000 7T ) 15
BEEBEM RN - HENAS
T H R S 12,663,000 0T (—
F AR k2,124,000 70 ) B AR
P BEWME - R IHENRA =
TH - AREEREA S AR
{5 B 5 8 98 5 5 52,153,000 00 > H
WA G S - R RN
A=+H  BMEELAELERK
2 A5 B R A -

TR AR L7 R R (5
I 1852 57 M R 2 0 U 05
SR BT -

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. As at 30 June 2025,
the Group provided HK$2,663,000 (2024: HK $2,124,000)
allowance of credit losses on trade receivables. As at 30
June 2025, trade receivables of HK$2,663,000 (2024:
HK$2,124,000) are considered to be credit-impaired. As at
30 June 2024, the Group provided HK$2,153,000 allowance
of credit losses on amount due from a joint venture, which
was considered to be credit-impaired. No allowance of credit
losses on amount due from a joint venture is provided as at
30 June 2025.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for credit-impaired trade receivables

under simplified approach:

2 300 B0 £ 0 0 R

(f5 £ WA )

Lifetime ECL

(credit-

impaired)

BT T

HK$°000

ATE =AML A—H At 1 July 2023 1,938
Hi 8 Written off (986)
I e 48 RR Impairment loss recognised 1,082
[fE 2% 2 #x Exchange adjustment 90
AR TUERA=Z1H At 30 June 2024 2,124
A G 18 AR Impairment loss recognised 632
i % ) Exchange adjustment (93)
R ZHAEANNZTH At 30 June 2025 2,663

AT AR A T e T I S O
TR 05 [e] AT BE Y ERE (B A o TS
O A AR IR 8 B A AT I
JF) SR 5 I W S 0 W AR DL b
(AR R g8 3 T ) > R A 42 4l
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The Group writes off trade receivables when there is
information that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade receivable are
over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.
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29. & TH ) 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(Z) A B 45 P H B B 8O (42) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
it ) 5 2 B Liquidity risk

A5 A B B 4 R T > A AR [
WP AR B RO A 2K
o DL A G RR 2 A AR A5 AR
LEEY > W OHSR BN
A IKF o

TR AL 2 & A E R
BRI B A E B DL - ZRUA
B ] d LR AR 2 M S e AR
54 B R B B AR 2 R BB

EUERR

7% 2% [F] IR B 45 A8 A 4 B 4 i

oo

MR TR TR T HAENA =
TH o IR A 4 B AR B T 4
R 52 18 B A

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities and lease liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest period on which the Group can be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
As at 30 June 2024 and 2025, the maturity dates for non-

derivative financial liabilities is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.

i B & w7 Liquidity risk tables
#
ZRONA
i BERR =MA RIS ANETR
TR pit—WA i BRA GERAR Wk
Weighted On demand Total  Carrying
average  or less than 1-3 3 months 2-5 undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 1 month months  to1year years years  cash flows 30 June 2025
% WTC BT BWFTC  #WTC #To #WTL #WTI
HKS’000  HKS’000  HK$’000  HKS$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS$’000
“RChA
2025
EUYEN IR
Trade and other payables - 11,129 1,083 6,282 - - 18,494 18,494
[BY €= UiV 1%
Long-term rental deposits received - - - - 4,540 2,450 6,990 6,990
HEAR
Lease liabilities 597 205 411 1,848 1,146 - 3,610 3453
11,334 1,494 8,130 5,086 2,450 29,094 28,937
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A ERIBEMEE (@)

BEZT-_AFA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

29. 2T H ) 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(Z) 2/ B 45 P H BE B BOR (4) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
VLbigerd N R Liquidity risk (Continued)
I B B B () Liquidity risk tables (Continued)

M fEER S @A “ AMERE
FHHE SR —f ‘ ERE  EAH
Weighted ~ On demand Total Carrying
average  or less than 13 3 months ) 2-5 undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year g years  cash flows 30 June 2024
% BT BETL EFTT O BBTL BETL BETT BETT
HKS$°000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
ZFRE
2024
25 R EAL R
Trade and other payables - 7,540 1,445 7,050 - - 16,035 16,035
BRI LS
Long-term rental deposits received - - - - 6,543 2,262 8,805 8,805
HEAR
Lease liabilities 597 205 411 1,848 2,465 1,146 6,075 5,647
7,745 1,856 8,898 9,008 3,408 30,915 30,487
(W) & THZ AT & (¢) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
4 T M 4 Rl AL BE 2 A AR The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
W R A0 2 A s A I e T B B 4 determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
it 5 43 BT E e models based on discounted cash flow analysis.
RS ARG T R IE N i R The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
24 A T A A B DA R A assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
SEAEAR AT o financial statements approximate their corresponding fair
values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
EEMBREME (@)

HE-_ZT-_AFSA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

30. A 2w SR O % 30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
AN A T A R B R LR L Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the
reporting period:
ZR AR ZE 4
2025 2024
V.3 T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
I W) = Non-current Assets
& Mt e A w) Investments in subsidiaries 659,606 654,947
LER S Y & d ) Loans to subsidiaries 634,337 599,979
1,293,943 1,254,926
it Current Assets
At R i T B TR 3 Other receivables and prepayments 186 226
RATH R R B & Bank balances and cash 979 1,131
1,165 1,357
i B A Current Liability
oA B A5 R K Other payables 5,151 4,976
it B B E Net Current Liabilities (3,986) (3,619)
B A WO B A Total Assets less Current Liability 1,289,957 1,251,307
AR T it A Capital and Reserves
i@ Share capital 237,704 237,704
Tt (B AT ) Reserves (Note) 729,790 700,345
HARE R Total Equity 967,494 938,049
B A Non-current Liability
IR} 2 ) 3K IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 322,463 313,258
1,289,957 1,251,307
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A ERIBEMEE (@)

BEZT-_AFA=1THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

30. AL M B KRB R 4 30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
et - bt Note: Reserves
g3 ]
B B it i B 586 e A At
Capital
Share redemption Translation Retained

premium reserve reserve profits Total
BT BT BT BRTT EWTT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000
BZZ-=£+tH—H At 1 July 2023 438,475 1,644 74,135 156,287 670,541
SRR Profit for the year = = = 22819 22819

KABA ISR B %S Exchange differences arising on translation of
presentation currency - - 9,363 - 9,363
FEERHEALE Total comprehensive income for the year - = 9,363 22819 32,182
W8 (Mt #11E) Dividends (note 11) - - - (2,378) 2378)
WZZZWESA=TH At 30 June 2024 438,475 1,644 83,498 176,728 700,345
SRR Profit for the year - - - 31,282 31,282

KABR R EHZ B EH Exchange differences arising on translation of
presentation currency - - 541 - 541
FERHBALH Total comprehensive income for the year - = 541 31,282 31,823
T8 (Wit #11%) Dividends (note 11) - - - (2379) (2.378)
REZZHEANZTH At 30 June 2025 438,475 1,644 84,039 205,632 729,790
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FE NI ARIEM G (m)
HE-_ZT-_AFSA=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

31. FEWEA AR 31. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES
ATE T RHAER F NENSHZT Particulars of principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2025 and 2024 are
Ho FEMBARZFHEEMOT as follows:
WL/ eEm/ DT RA R/ KARRHTHIRA/
WRAT A ERAE A AMEAuRAA  TER
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ nominal value of issued/
registration/ Issued and paid up registered capital held
Name of subsidiaries operation share capital/registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
3114 kb
Ordinary Others
o L3
“RCAA ZElL “RAA i a2 BB
2025 204 2025 204 2025 and 2024
TRHERRERS R (W) - - FA0000E  EE300000007 % WERE
HRAT (Kt (Hit=) i
PRC (Note ) - - US$30,000,000 US$30,000,000 95%  Property investment
(Notei) (Notei) (Note )
Broad Capitel Investments Limited 58 S0 B2 EZAVH £41 - - 100%  fEER
British Virgin Islands USs1 USs! - - 100%  Investment holding
ENHRAR ERRARE RESONE  FESI00T - - 000 REER
Dynamic (B.V.1.) Limited British Virgin Islands US850,000 US850,000 - - 100%  Investment holding
ENERRHAERAT i o o - - 1o EHEBRE
Dynamic Management Services Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - - 100%  Provision of management
Limited services
Glory Diamond Inc. EERLES 4105 2107 - = 0%  HEEK
British Virgin Islands USs10 USs10 - - 100%  Investment holding
HEEERRAR Fi s ko - - e fRERR
Harvic Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - - 100%  Investment holding
BREEERAR ERRARE X4 $817 - - 00 REER
High Grand Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands USs1 USs! - - 100%  Investment holding
BHARERAA it/ 1R L LV - - 0% R
Move On International Limited Hong Kong/PRC HKSI HKS! - - 100%  Property investment
BRLE (L) FHE i - - ARWLO0000E AR E L0000 00 AR
MERRAR (i 7) PRC - - RMBLONOOND  RMBLOOO00 100%  Property leasing
FYHENERERE R - - ARWL00000E AR E L0000 100% R
HRAR PRC - - RMBLONOOD  RMBLOOOONO 100%  Property development
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEEWE A v )

[1]

T B K ST 2 b T RN S M EE B BE A
m 1(%3ﬂﬁh&%%*%Aﬁ

G AT o A R NE 2 5 AR A Ay 25 4
mmmmm bl A AR A B i B
2 4:30,000,000 7T J7 A< 4 ] T 4R 2 %
AR o SR o AN A [ KK [ 7 AT A G A
N 959 FI) 11 J2 15 & 7 o

AR W 2 JF BE I RE 4 T & T K R
A IE P B RE 4 > 43 B AR 3R b T ) g
by B SRR ME 25 T A SE o A SR T
ﬂi/\ﬁ -+ H > :il:R*'JE(#gurA

3L ¥ 739,442,000 6 (. F P4 4 ¢

%%MHWWWL7£%@ﬁ&ﬁ%
2 W 653,620,000 JC (. F P AR
i 15691,389,000 70 ) - A & M & 2 " K
s 103,470,000 JC (& Y 4R
5 #5102,429,000 7C ) > $RAT & R KB &
W 152,311,000 6 (& P04

143,082,000 ¢ ) FL fib ME FE 2 i ¥
2,532,000 7C ( 2 L PUAFE : i 11,802,000
J6) B MR AE B TE £ i 154,373,000 7T
(R DUAE - 3§ 9177,832,00000) ©

% % J1 A B 72 7] J2 Glory Diamond Inc. H
RO E HER GRS BT BHE A A
YR AR w A -

?Jﬁutﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁyg¢
ESUE S Gy /A ) P4
mﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁwgﬁjﬁﬂ%m&%%
LEEAN
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31.

i & B 35 R TE B 5E ca)

HEZT-_AFA=1HLEFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

iii.

Beijing Longfast Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Longfast”) established in the PRC is registered as sino-foreign co-
operative joint venture. Beijing Longfast had a registered capital
of US$30,000,000. The amount of US$30,000,000 disclosed in
both years above represents capital paid by the Group. However,
the Group’s entitlement to share the profit and net assets in Beijing
Longfast was agreed to be at 95%.

The Group’s non-controlling interests and total comprehensive
expense attributable to non-controlling interests represented the
equity and total comprehensive expense attributed to the other
shareholder of Beijing Longfast, respectively. As at 30 June 2025,
Beijing Longfast’s net assets amounting to HK$739,442,000 (2024:
HK$742,702,000) were mainly consisted of investment properties of
HK$653,620,000 (2024: HK$691,389,000), amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries of HK$103,470,000 (2024: HK$102,429,000), bank
balances and cash of HK$152,311,000 (2024: HK $143,082,000),
other accruals of HK$2,532,000 (2024: HK$1,802,000) and deferred
tax liabilities of HK$154,373,000 (2024: HK$177,832,000).

Other than Dynamic (B.V.1.) Limited and Glory Diamond Inc., which
are wholly-owned directly by the Company, all subsidiaries are held
by the Company indirectly.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year, or at any time during the year.

The subsidiary was set up during the year ended 30 June 2024.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEWMBRE

A

SEBEAD A A REG

i Al (B 18)

BREARR (B
(1% M)

1 2 A
(W M)

Revenue

Profit (loss) for the year attributable

to the owners of the Company

Basic earnings (loss) per share
(Hong Kong cents)

Diluted earnings per share
(Hong Kong cents)

AR - R R bR

ERE SV G
fiREE &
BBy E
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CR-EEVE
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HAEE

BEAME

LYNSE 2PN A £

I 7 A R
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Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Interest in a joint venture
Amount due from a joint venture
Current assets

Other asset

Total assets

Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Bank loans —
due after one year
Deferred tax liabilities
Long-term rental deposits received
Lease liabilities
Current liabilities

Total liabilities

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

R

2024 2025

/ﬁ%@ﬁz BETTL  EB¥TFL

HKS$'000 HKS000  HKS$'000

86,719 86,892 79,734 71,573 64,952
(14,065) 31,152 6,634 5,353,955 (62,594)
(5.9) 13.1 28 20524 (26.3)
N/A N/A N/A N/A NA

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND

EQUITY

BAH=+H

At 30 June
—E 4 ZEINE ZFIAHAF
2021 2024 2025
BT T ,é“’*%m BHTTL  B¥TI
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
2,402 1,818 1,240 1,431 1,363
5,651 3317 1,053 5,409 3,190
2,074,921 2,005,063 1,840,814 1,838,227 1,725,028
91,831 91,163 82,331 - -
242,129 235,768 = = -
352,755 346,925 469,694 13,235,899 13,264,607
1,441 1,403 1,301 1,189 738
2,771,130 2,685,457 2396433 15,082,155 14,994,926
2,166,702 2,134,562 1,985,068 7,354,705 7,295,320
43,265 41,642 39,218 39,939 39,773
2,209,967 2,176,204 2,024,286 7,394,644 7,335,093
91,833 - - - -
299,809 262,633 234,029 7,496,793 7,469,440
11,551 11,114 15,165 8,805 6,990
3,506 1,134 - 3,453 1,128
154,464 234372 122,953 178,460 182,275
561,163 509,253 372,147 7,687,511 7,639,833
2,771,130 2,685,457 2396433 15,082,155 14,994,926
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ANALYSIS OF PROPERTIES HELD

IECR-RIE iR

MRZE_HERNA=ZTH IFAHREY
EZRHMT

i B

Location

rp e RS 3 A

L&

i AR [

i A

S B I P 5 R 45 VG I

CAEE A T OREE T =4 R 1 4

Levels 7 to 22 (without levels 13 and 14)
West Tower, Eton Place

No. 69 Dongfang Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai

The People’s Republic of China

G N

Je

W B I H %

B

S B T R = L
s CTHE

oW R = A E RS

Carpark spaces in Phase I, II, III,
commercial portion of Phase III and
residential portion of Phase II and I1I
No. 25 Nan Lane

Ganlouyuan

Chaoyang District

Beijing

The People’s Republic of China
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Particulars of properties held for investment at 30 June 2025:

AL AR

Lease term
b /N i
Office Medium

W BEY MEE T

Commercial/ Medium

Carpark/Residential

139



ANALYSIS OF PROPERTIES HELD (Continued)
FMiEEMEDN &)

W oEHEANA=ZTH BRE P YWHZ  Particulars of properties under development at 30 June 2025:
R

7K 55 1 M A

Group’s attributable interest

i i ¢ & Hi i ¢

L S FHR L
{048 3 CFJik) CPJik) BRIRER 0
Approximate  Approximate

gross floor area site area  Stage of Expected
Location (square metre)  (square metre)  completion completion date
iz 7% o A RN B g 100 179,091 64,676 BEREH (i
R A R 0 iES
7 1L [ 5 A4 B
K709-0003 5% 315
Land Lot No. K709-0003 Residential 100 179,091 64,676 Under To be confirmed
located in Tung Kok Tau, Commercial development
Shekou, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province,
PRC
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